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Pro Forma*

Q1/02 Q2/02 Q3/02 Q4/02 Q1/03 Q2/03 Q3/03 Q4/03

Revenues $ 29.0 $ 32.0 $ 36.4 $ 41.1 $ 51.1 $ 58.3 $ 64.3 $ 71.6
Gross profit 21.1 24.2 27.7 31.6 40.2 45.4 50.3 56.7
Operating expenses 20.9 22.0 23.7 25.3 28.7 31.1 33.3 38.1
Pro forma net income 0.2 2.8 3.7 5.2 10.9 13.0 15.4 11.9
Basic pro forma net income per share 0.01 0.04 0.05 0.07 0.14 0.17 0.19 0.15
Diluted pro forma net income per share 0.00 0.03 0.05 0.07 0.13 0.15 0.18 0.14

Financial Highlights

Consolidated Financial Data (in millions, except per share data)

GAAP (Generally Accepted Accounting Principles)

Q1/02 Q2/02 Q3/02 Q4/02 Q1/03 Q2/03 Q3/03 Q4/03

Revenues $ 29.0 $ 32.0 $ 36.4 $ 41.1 $ 51.1 $ 58.3 $ 64.3 $ 71.6
Gross profit 20.5 23.5 27.0 30.9 39.4 44.5 49.4 55.9
Operating expenses 26.2 27.4 29.1 30.8 34.1 36.0 38.8 43.2
Net income (loss) applicable to 
common stockholders (34.5) (3.3) (2.4) (0.9) 3.2 5.9 35.3 7.1
Basic income/(loss) per share (1.25) (0.05) (0.03) (0.01) 0.04 0.08 0.44 0.09
Diluted income/(loss) per share (1.25) (0.05) (0.03) (0.01) 0.04 0.07 0.41 0.08

Pro Forma Adjustments*

Q1/02 Q2/02 Q3/02 Q4/02 Q1/03 Q2/03 Q3/03 Q4/03

Gross profit adjustment
Stock-based compensation and
amortization of intangible assets $ 0.6 $ 0.7 $ 0.7 $ 0.7 $ 0.9 $ 0.9 $ 0.8 $ 0.8

Operating expenses adjustment
Stock-based compensation and
amortization of intangible assets 5.3 5.4 5.5 5.4 5.5 4.8 5.5 5.0

Deemed dividends on series E and F
convertible preferred stock 28.7 – – – – – – –

Total pro forma adjustments (pre-tax) 34.6 6.1 6.2 6.1 6.3 5.7 6.3 5.8

*Pro forma net income and per share information result from excluding non-cash compensation associated with stock options, amortization of intangible assets and deemed div-
idends associated with preferred stock, net of related income tax effect. Pro forma adjustments reflect non-cash compensation associated with stock options, amortization of
intangible assets and deemed dividends associated with preferred stock included in the line items above.
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Fellow Stockholders:

Fiscal 2003 was a very successful year for NetScreen on many levels. Our unique purpose-built, appliance-
based approach to network security continues to gain momentum as our customers look to improve the security
of their networks and reduce operating costs, without impacting network performance. During the year, we
significantly expanded and enhanced our product offerings, strengthened our presence in the security market, and
improved our financial performance.

As network security threats become increasingly sophisticated, NetScreen is developing and delivering
solutions to combat these attacks on multiple fronts. For example, we introduced the NetScreen-5GT, our newest
appliance for remote sites, which provides firewall, VPN and denial of service protection. What makes the
NetScreen-5GT unique is the ability to activate the embedded antivirus protection provided through our
partnership with Trend Micro, Inc., a leader in network-based antivirus solutions. Also, we recently introduced
our new Deep Inspection firewall. Resulting from the integration of technology acquired through our 2002
acquisition of OneSecure, Inc., Deep Inspection offers a new class of firewall with application-level intrusion
prevention capabilities that can provide advanced security where telecommuter, branch-office and central-site
locations connect to the Internet. We believe these technologies will provide our customers with better protection
from sophisticated attacks both today and in the future.

Deploying a reliable, robust, multi-function security appliance is one thing but being able to manage tens,
hundreds or even thousands of devices deployed over vast geographic areas is a challenging effort for IT
professionals. With our recent launch of NetScreen-Security Manager 2004, we’ve designed an innovative, role-
based management platform that facilitates network and security team collaboration allowing for strong security
and network management. We believe this next generation management tool will be an essential part of our total
security solution offering as networks become increasingly dispersed and complex.

When new market opportunities arise in the network security market we determine when and if to enter that
new market and whether we develop the new technology ourselves, partner or acquire an established company in
that space. After a thorough study of the SSL VPN market, NetScreen acquired Neoteris, Inc., in November
2003. This acquisition expanded our product portfolio to include Neoteris’ market leading “clientless” SSL VPN
remote access solution that enables an enterprise remote user, telecommuter, or extranet partner to easily and
securely access corporate resources via a standard Web browser. Neoteris’ enterprise-class SSL VPN remote
access solution complements NetScreen’s current network security product portfolio of hardware-based network
security solutions, allowing NetScreen to offer the industry’s broadest range of secure access solutions—
spanning enterprise site-to-site, employee remote access and partner extranet communications. We are very
excited about the potential opportunity that this new market segment holds. Research firms, such as Infonetics
Research, currently estimate this market will exceed $540 million by 2006.

In fiscal 2003 we continued to build our presence in every major geographic area and recorded record
revenues of $245.3 million, a 77 percent increase over fiscal 2002. We achieved our largest year over year gains
in Asia Pacific, as NetScreen worked to establish itself as the leading security appliance vendor in key countries
and, according to IDC, became the number one security appliance vendor in Japan. We also saw significant
revenue growth in the Americas and Europe as we continue to penetrate major vertical markets such as financial
institutions, government agencies, retail companies and technology companies.

Fiscal 2003 also marks the first year NetScreen became profitable as calculated on the basis of generally
accepted accounting principles (GAAP1). GAAP net income for fiscal 2003 was $51.5 million, or $0.65 per basic
and $0.61 per diluted share, compared to a GAAP net loss applicable to common stockholders of $41.1 million,
or ($0.68) per basic and diluted share in fiscal 2002. Pro forma2 net income for fiscal 2003 was $51.2 million, or
$0.65 per basic and $0.60 per diluted share, compared to pro forma net income of $11.9 million, or $0.20 per
basic and $0.16 per diluted share for fiscal 2002. We also generated $85.0 million in operating cash flow in fiscal
2003 bringing our total of cash, cash equivalents and short-term investments up to $340.7 million at the end of
fiscal 2003.



We accomplished a great deal over the past year and as we move forward our focus to grow NetScreen into
the No. 1 network security provider in the world remains unwavering. As we progress on our way towards
achieving this goal, I want to thank our customers, employees and partners who have been instrumental in our
success as a company to date and who provide the foundation for NetScreen’s future success. I also want to thank
you, our stockholders, for your investment in NetScreen.

Sincerely,

Robert D. Thomas
President and Chief Executive Officer

1 GAAP net income for fiscal 2003 included a non-cash net tax benefit of $29.6 million resulting from the
non-recurring recognition of previously reserved deferred tax assets such as net operating losses, a non-cash
charge of $23.2 million for stock-based compensation associated primarily with stock options granted prior
to the company’s initial public offering and a non-cash charge of approximately $978,000 for amortization
of intangible assets associated with the September 2002 acquisition of OneSecure. GAAP net loss applicable
to common stockholders for fiscal 2002 included the effect of a non-cash charge of $24.3 million for stock-
based compensation associated primarily with stock options. A non-cash charge of approximately $41,000
for amortization of intangible assets and a deemed dividend on Series F redeemable convertible preferred
stock of $28.7 million.

2 Pro forma net income and pro forma net income per share information differs from the GAAP results
because it excludes the effect of the items mentioned in note 1 above, net of the related tax effects.
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FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This annual report on Form 10-K contains forward-looking statements within the meaning of Section 27A of
the Securities Act of 1933 and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. These forward-looking
statements may be identified by the use of words such as “can,” “allow,” “enable,” “expect,” “anticipate,”
“intend,” “believe,” “estimate,” “will,” “may,” “continue” and similar terms. These forward-looking statements
include our expectations about our business strategy, revenue, cost of revenues and various operating expenses.
Our actual results may differ significantly from those projected in the forward-looking statements as a result of
many factors, including the risks and uncertainties discussed in the section “Management’s Discussion and
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations,” and the section entitled “Factors That May Affect
Our Business and Future Results of Operations and Financial Condition” and elsewhere in this report. You
should also carefully review the risks described in other documents we file from time to time with the Securities
and Exchange Commission, including the quarterly reports on Form 10-Q or current reports on Form 8-K that we
will file in 2003 or 2004. You are cautioned not to place undue reliance on the forward-looking statements,
which speak only as of the date of this report. We undertake no obligation to update any forward-looking
statements for any reason, except as required by law, even if new information becomes available or other events
occur in the future.
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PART I

Item 1. Business.

Overview

NetScreen develops, markets and sells a broad family of high performance, cost-effective, purpose-built
network security solutions. Our security solutions integrate key security technologies in appliances and systems
that can be deployed at multiple points in the network. These solutions provide the layers of network and
application level security to implement secure network-to-network, user-to-network and user-to-user
communication with encryption, access control, authentication and attack detection and prevention.

We believe we offer our customers the most comprehensive and effective set of network security solutions
delivering core security technologies such as virtual private networking, firewall and denial of service protection,
intrusion detection and prevention, and antivirus technologies. Our breadth of product offerings allows us to
address the needs of a wide range of customers and networks from single user environments, to high capacity,
geographically dispersed enterprise deployments, to large-scale, carrier class networks. Our broad family of
products also enables our end customers to cost-effectively address their security needs across the network using
stateful inspection and what we call Deep Inspection firewall technologies, IPSec and SSL VPNs, denial of
service protection, antivirus and Intrusion Detection and Prevention solutions from a single vendor, reducing
implementation complexities and accelerating deployments.

IP security protocol (IPSec) VPNs provide secure, encrypted connectivity between networks by tunneling
traffic across untrusted networks such as the Internet. Secure sockets layer (SSL) VPNs leverage the SSL
technology in a standard web browser to provide remote users and business partners with secure access to
enterprise resources and applications from an Internet-enabled device without requiring the installation of client
software on the remote device. Both IPSec VPNs and SSL VPNs protect against malicious eavesdropping and/or
data manipulation by encrypting data to provide confidentiality and authenticating data to provide data integrity.
Our stateful inspection firewalls help prevent unauthorized network access by establishing a perimeter defense
between two networks, such as an enterprise’s network and the Internet. These firewalls enable users to establish
security policies designed to permit only authorized traffic into and out of a connected network. Deep Inspection
firewalls, delivered as part of our ScreenOS version 5.0 operating system, use stateful inspection capabilities and
add intrusion detection and prevention technologies to protect against application level attacks at the network
perimeter. Intrusion detection and prevention (IDP) appliances detect network and application level attacks using
sophisticated detection methods and, once an attack is identified, can alert internal IT staff or drop the packets or
connection associated with the attack. Antivirus protection provides application layer defense by reassembling
data packets at the network perimeter to detect malicious code or worms embedded in files being transferred
across the network.

The NetScreen Solution

Using our products, enterprises, carriers and government entities can facilitate a variety of security and
network protection objectives including securing communication over the Internet, enforcing network access
policies and protecting against worm and virus outbreaks as well as sophisticated intrusion attempts by hackers.
Our solutions are deployed in cost sensitive branch offices and remote sites as well as in mission-critical
environments such as enterprise central sites, corporate extranets, major e-business Web sites and carrier network
infrastructures. Our solutions can be purchased and operated by enterprises and can also be used by carriers to
secure their infrastructure or deliver managed security services to their enterprise customers.

We provide two classes of firewall and VPN products: high performance chassis-based systems and fixed
configuration appliances. Our firewall and VPN system products include the NetScreen-5400, NetScreen-5200
and NetScreen-500. These products are high capacity, high availability, flexible configuration, network security
platforms. These chassis-based systems allow users to deploy multiple configurations that best suit their network
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environment. Our firewall and VPN appliance products include the NetScreen-208, NetScreen-204,
NetScreen-50, NetScreen-25, NetScreen-5XT, NetScreen-5GT and NetScreen-5XP. These appliances provide a
fixed configuration solution that greatly simplifies customer installation and can be deployed to address specific
network requirements. Our firewall and VPN systems and appliances deliver integrated firewall, VPN and denial
of service protection capabilities in a single device using our proprietary application specific integrated circuits
(ASICs), which we refer to as the GigaScreen and GigaScreen II ASICs. Our NetScreen-5GT firewall and VPN
appliance uses a reduced instruction set computer (RISC) processor with an embedded hardware accelerated
encryption engine, and includes gateway-based antivirus functionality. All of our firewall and VPN systems and
appliances use our embedded security operating system and applications, which we call ScreenOS, enabling
flexible security and network configurations to meet the needs of a wide variety of network environments.

We provide three IDP appliances: the NetScreen-IDP 500, NetScreen-IDP 100 and NetScreen-IDP 10.
These products detect attacks and prevent intrusions to reduce or eliminate the impact of a broad range of
sophisticated network and application level attacks. These IDP appliances provide efficient attack detection,
reducing the number of false alarms and missed attacks, and attack prevention, by dropping the packets or
connection associated with the attack. These IDP appliances can be deployed as an enforcement point, or in-line,
in the network to stop attacks that may have otherwise been missed by other security systems or otherwise have
reached their intended network targets. Our IDP appliances run a secure version of the Linux operating system
and use proprietary software and multiple detection methods to identify network and application attacks and
prevent them from reaching mission-critical resources. With this platform, our IDP appliances incorporate
multiple methods of detection, such as Stateful Signatures, protocol anomaly detection and backdoor detection,
in a single device. These detection methodologies monitor the data traffic and connection requests on a network,
in order to identify and stop attacks based on known patterns of attack, suspicious traffic or protocol anomalies.

We provide three Secure Access appliances: the NetScreen-SA 5000, NetScreen-SA 3000, and NetScreen-
SA 1000. Our SSL VPN products, which we refer to as our Neoteris Secure Access Appliances, are based upon
our Instant Virtual Extranet (IVE) platform, a hardened application security gateway that can easily be integrated
into an enterprise’s existing security infrastructure and authentication systems. With this platform, our Secure
Access products provide SSL VPN capabilities to allow secure access to enterprise resources and applications
without the need to deploy, configure or maintain client software on end systems. Our Secure Meeting appliance,
the NetScreen-SM 3000, leverages this functionality to enable online meetings and user-to-user collaboration.

All of our products are based on industry standard communication protocols so they can be integrated easily
into networks and will interoperate with other network and security infrastructure solutions, including other
IPSec security devices, routers, switches, management applications and directory and authentication solutions.
Our security systems and appliances can be centrally managed with flexible management software. For our
firewall and VPN systems and appliances running ScreenOS version 4.0 and later versions of ScreenOS, our
NetScreen-Security Manager provides centralized, end-to-end management control of device configuration,
network settings and security policies across a network. NetScreen-Global PRO and Global PRO Express enable
secure, scalable monitoring of devices, network traffic and security events and policy administration for devices
running ScreenOS version 4.0 and earlier versions of ScreenOS. For our IDP appliances, our NetScreen-IDP
Manager gives administrators control over which traffic the IDP appliance should examine and how it should
respond when intrusions are detected, and provides sophisticated logging and analysis functions to aid in
identifying attacks. Our SSL VPN appliances include embedded management functionality in each device.
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Products

Firewall and VPN Systems and Appliances

Our firewall and VPN systems and appliances consist of the following products:

Throughput IPSec
Tunnels(1)

Maximum
Concurrent
Sessions List Price(2)Product Firewall VPN

Security Systems
NetScreen-5400 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 12 Gbps 6 Gbps 25,000 1,000,000 $99,000–$310,000
NetScreen-5200 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 4 Gbps 2 Gbps 25,000 1,000,000 $69,000–$269,000
NetScreen-500 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 700 Mbps 250 Mbps 10,000 250,000 $25,000–$84,600

Security Appliances
NetScreen-208 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 550 Mbps 200 Mbps 1,000 128,000 $14,995–$20,800
NetScreen-204 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 400 Mbps 200 Mbps 1,000 128,000 $9,995–$14,300
NetScreen-50 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 170 Mbps 50 Mbps 100/400 64,000 $5,995–$7,795
NetScreen-25 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 100 Mbps 20 Mbps 25/100 16,000 $3,495–$4,500
NetScreen-5GT . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 75 Mbps 20 Mbps 10 2,000 $495–$1,245
NetScreen-5XT . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 70 Mbps 20 Mbps 10 2,000 $695–$1,500
NetScreen-5XP . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 20 Mbps 13 Mbps 10 2,000 $495–$1,300

(1) A tunnel is an encrypted link between two devices. Where indicated, the second number indicates additional
dial-up VPN tunnel capacity.

(2) Price depends on configuration and customer location.

Firewall and VPN Systems. The NetScreen-5400, NetScreen-5200 and NetScreen-500 products are high
performance security systems designed to provide integrated firewall, VPN and denial of service protection
capabilities for enterprise environments and carrier network infrastructures. Each can be deployed in high
bandwidth environments and can be used to deliver managed security services. Our firewall and VPN systems
allow unique security policies to be enforced for multiple virtual local area networks, or VLANs, allowing a
single system to secure multiple networks. Our security systems also allow for the creation of multiple Virtual
Systems, each providing a unique security domain with its own virtual firewall and VPN and dedicated
management interface. These features enable enterprises, carriers and government entities to use a single security
system to secure multiple networks and enable carriers to deliver security services to multiple customers. For
example, the NetScreen-5000 product family supports 4,000 VLANs and up to 500 Virtual Systems. The
NetScreen-500 supports 100 VLANs and up to 25 Virtual Systems. The NetScreen-500 supports an optional
upgrade designed to enable wireless carriers to secure General Packet Radio Service (GPRS) and 3G Universal
Mobile Telephone Service (UTMS) networks.

Firewall and VPN Appliances. The NetScreen-208, NetScreen-204, NetScreen-50, NetScreen-25,
NetScreen-5GT, NetScreen-5XT and NetScreen-5XP security appliances are fixed configuration products of
varying performance and capacity characteristics that offer integrated firewall, VPN and denial of service
protection capabilities. These fixed configuration appliances are designed to greatly simplify customer
installation and can be deployed to address specific network requirements. Our security appliances can be
deployed to provide small to medium-sized businesses and enterprise remote locations with secure Internet
access and communication. Our NetScreen-5GT appliance can be deployed with antivirus capabilities to stop
virus outbreaks, including blended attacks, at the corporate gateway before they reach users’ desktops.
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Intrusion Detection and Prevention Appliances

Our IDP products consist of the following:

Product Throughput

Maximum
Concurrent
Sessions List Price(1)

NetScreen-IDP 500 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 500 Mbps 220,000 $34,995-$45,495
NetScreen-IDP 100 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 200 Mbps 70,000 $16,495-$21,450
NetScreen-IDP 10 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 20 Mbps 10,000 $7,995-$10,395

(1) Price depends on configuration and customer location.

Our IDP appliances detect attacks and prevent intrusions using Multi-Method Detection (MMD) which utilizes
eight intrusion detection methods to increase the attack detection accuracy and which we believe provide the
broadest attack detection coverage available. These attack detection mechanisms include protocol anomaly,
backdoor, traffic anomaly, IP spoofing, Layer 2 and SYN-flood detection, a network honeypot and a technique
called Stateful Signature Detection. Stateful Signature Detection uses signatures that look for attack pattern
matches only in the relevant portions of the traffic where an intrusion can be perpetrated. Our IDP appliances
provide fast and efficient traffic processing and alarm collection, presentation and forwarding. Once an attack is
detected, our IDP appliances prevent the intrusion by dropping the packets or connection associated with the
attack, reducing or eliminating the effects of the attack. Our IDP appliances can also alert the IT staff to respond
to the attack. Our IDP appliances can be clustered to provide high availability and reduce the risk associated with
a single point of failure.

Secure Access and Secure Meeting Appliances

Our Secure Access products consist of the following:

Product

Maximum
Concurrent

Users List Price(1)

NetScreen-SA 5000 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2,500 $39,995-$114,995
NetScreen-SA 3000 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1,000 $29,995-$69,995
NetScreen-SA 1000 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 250 $9,995-$24,995

(1) Price depends on configuration and customer location.

Our Secure Meeting product consists of the following:

Product

Maximum
Concurrent

Users List Price(1)

NetScreen-SM 3000 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 250 $14,995-$44,995

(1) Price depends on configuration and customer location.

Our Secure Access appliances provide a wide range of enterprise-class scalability, high availability, and security
functionality for customers seeking to provide secure access to network resources over a public network. These
appliances can provide direct access to network resources or application-layer and user-specific access to
network resources in an easy to deploy appliance. Our Secure Access appliances also provide network
administrators detailed auditing and reporting capabilities to monitor network access. Additionally, these
appliances provide SSL VPN capabilities to allow secure access to enterprise resources and applications without
the need to deploy, configure or maintain client software on end systems. Our Secure Meeting product leverages
this functionality to enable online meetings and user-to-user collaboration.
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Software

NetScreen-Security Manager. NetScreen-Security Manager is our next generation management platform
which provides centralized, end-to-end management control of device configuration, network settings and
security policies for up to 1000 NetScreen firewall and VPN systems and appliances. NetScreen-Security
Manager allows enterprise IT departments and carriers to delegate appropriate levels of administrative access to
specific administrators for a wide range of tasks, ranging from read-only to full-edit capabilities. It can provide or
restrict information to different individuals or constituencies within the organization, allowing enterprise
administrators to make role-appropriate decisions, and allowing carriers to manage security for multiple
customers using a single management platform. NetScreen-Security Manager provides a single, integrated
management interface to control device parameters from a centralized location and high performance log storage
mechanism that allows administrators to collect and monitor detailed information on key network criteria such as
network traffic, device status, and security events. With integrated configuration, logging, monitoring and
reporting in a single, unified interface, and powerful role based administration, NetScreen-Security Manager
enables members of an IT organization to work together to manage security on the network. NetScreen-Security
Manager supports all of our firewall and VPN security systems and appliances running ScreenOS version 4.0 or
later. The list price for NetScreen-Security Manager management software is between $5,995 and $72,800
depending on the number of devices to be managed and customer location.

NetScreen-Global PRO and NetScreen-Global PRO Express. Our NetScreen-Global PRO products are
management applications that provide centralized network and security management for devices running our
ScreenOS version 4.0 operating system software and earlier versions of ScreenOS. NetScreen-Global PRO and
NetScreen-Global PRO Express manage all of our firewall and VPN systems and appliances and can be delivered
as a pre-installed application on a third party server to simplify deployment. NetScreen-Global PRO is designed
to allow for role-based device configuration, policy management, real-time monitoring and historical reporting of
network traffic and security logs. NetScreen-Global PRO Express is an entry-level version of our management
application that manages up to 100 devices. The list price for NetScreen-Global PRO management software and
the server is between $16,995 and $55,995 depending on the number of devices to be managed and customer
location. NetScreen-Global PRO Express has a list price between $4,995 and $25,995 depending on the number
of devices to be managed and customer location.

NetScreen-IDP Manager. NetScreen-IDP Manager provides centralized, policy-based management for
our IDP appliances. Using the NetScreen-IDP Manager, customers can manage up to 100 IDP appliances from a
single management console. Administrators create individual rules to establish a security policy. This gives
administrators control over which traffic the IDP appliance should examine and how it should respond when
attacks or intrusions are detected. NetScreen-IDP Manager capabilities include a policy editor, log viewer,
integrated security incident management and reports to provide our customers useful tools to manage security by
using our IDP application. Customers can manage up to 10 IDP appliances using NetScreen-IDP Manager at no
cost. The list price for an upgrade to the NetScreen-IDP Manager management software and the server is
between $8,495 and $17,495 depending on the number of devices to be managed and customer location.

NetScreen-Remote Client software. NetScreen-Remote is a line of two client software products that
provide mobile or remote users with security capabilities. NetScreen-Remote VPN Client is used to establish
VPN connections from personal computers. It is based on IPSec client software licensed from a third party. The
list price for NetScreen-Remote VPN Client is up to $12.50 per license. NetScreen-Remote Security Client is
used to establish VPN connections as well as integrated client-based firewall capabilities. It uses software
licensed from a third party. The list price for NetScreen-Remote Security Client is up to $44.50 per license.
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Services

Product Support Offerings

We provide a range of hardware and software support options for our firewall and VPN systems and
appliances, IDP appliances, Secure Access appliances, Secure Meeting appliances and for our NetScreen-
Security Manager, NetScreen-Global PRO, NetScreen-Global PRO Express and NetScreen-IDP Manager
applications. These options include extended hardware maintenance, faster hardware replacement for defective
units, software maintenance and world-wide technical support with access 24 hours a day, seven days a week.
These service offerings can be purchased as a bundle to provide comprehensive service and support for the
covered product or as separate support offerings. The software maintenance provides our end customers with
updates and upgrades during the period of coverage purchased by the customer.

Professional Services and Training Offerings

To facilitate the sale, customer installation and use of our security products, we provide our customers with
fee-based, hands-on training classes, testing and certification, and professional services such as network design,
product installation and configuration, and security assessments. These services can be sold by our resellers and
can be delivered directly by our personnel or by authorized training and service partners.

Alliances

We have established formal and informal commercial relationships with networking, security and
application development companies to provide low cost, high performance network security solutions to our
customers. We expect these alliances to verify and demonstrate the interoperability of our security products with
other networking equipment and technologies. We also expect these alliances to help facilitate the introduction of
new features, solutions and product enhancements.

Through our Global Security Alliance program, end customers can select scalable and comprehensive
network security solutions to secure their networks. Solutions offered through this program combine the features
of our systems and appliances, such as firewall, VPN, denial of service protection and IDP, with the features of
our alliance members’ products that provide additional complementary technologies and services, to provide
comprehensive end-to-end security for an end customer’s network infrastructure. Some of the complementary
security alliances today address antivirus filtering, application security, security event management, multi-device
management, content filtering, route optimization and authentication. Within our alliance program, we work with
alliance members to architect solutions and verify the compatibility and integration of such solutions. In most
cases, where applicable, we have integration documentation and other tools for successful implementation. Joint
solutions also address certain network environments like 3rd Generation wireless data networks (GPRS, CDMA,
UMTS), IP telephony and voice-over IP, wireless LANs, and broadband.

Customers

Distributors, Resellers and Carriers

Domestically, we sell directly to major carriers and primarily indirectly to enterprise and other end
customers through value-added resellers and a distributor. Internationally, we sell primarily through distributors,
who, in turn, sell to value-added resellers. Sales through distributors and value-added resellers represented 92.1%
of our total revenues in the fiscal year ended September 30, 2003.

End Customers

Our end customers, include small, medium and large businesses, large carriers such as traditional local and
long distance telephone companies, Internet carriers, managed security service providers, and government
entities.
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In fiscal 2003, 2002 and 2001, no customer accounted for 10% or more of our total revenues.

Technology

Our firewall and VPN security systems and appliances are built on a technology core that consists of our
proprietary GigaScreen or GigaScreen-II ASICs, RISC processors and our ScreenOS, which integrates a security
operating system and other software applications. Our NetScreen-5GT firewall and VPN appliance uses a RISC
processor and ScreenOS. Our ASICs and ScreenOS have been designed specifically for the unique requirements
of high performance security processing. The NetScreen-5000 series of systems uses GigaScreen-II ASICs and
an innovative system architecture to deliver high performance security processing. We incorporate our Virtual
Systems capability and high availability technology into the NetScreen-5400, NetScreen-5200 and
NetScreen-500. We incorporate our high availability technology into the NetScreen-208, NetScreen-204,
NetScreen-50, NetScreen-25 and the NetScreen-IDP appliances. The NetScreen-SA 5000, NetScreen-SA 3000,
NetScreen-SA 1000 and NetScreen-SM 3000, are based upon our IVE platform, a hardened application security
gateway. The NetScreen-IDP 500, NetScreen-IDP 100 and NetScreen-IDP 10 appliances offer MMD which
utilizes eight intrusion detection methods for efficient attack detection and intrusion protection, making it capable
of dropping an attack and reducing or eliminating its impact on the network. We have also developed scalable,
centralized management software to allow our end customers to manage large numbers of security devices.

GigaScreen-II ASIC and NetScreen-5000 Series Hardware Architecture

The NetScreen-5000 series of systems use up to six GigaScreen-II ASICs and a distributed system
architecture for high performance security processing. The GigaScreen-II ASIC contains multiple powerful
processing engines, each responsible for a portion of data flow processing. Examples of these processing
functions include packet parsing, classification, fragmentation, reassembly, encryption, decryption, network
address translation and session lookup. The GigaScreen-II ASIC’s high performance packet input-output
capability and controls are designed to integrate with modern hardware packet switching technology.

Each GigaScreen-II ASIC is capable of supporting 2 Gbps of firewall traffic and 1 Gbps of VPN traffic. The
NetScreen-5000 series of systems can utilize multiple GigaScreen-II ASIC processors for security flow processing
and a RISC processor for management and control processes. This architecture contains three primary components:

• Secure Port (Flow Processing) Modules are based around the GigaScreen-II ASIC and a programmable
front-end processor. The programmable element provides flexibility to improve future performance and
facilitate scalability. These modules handle every packet as it enters and exits the system, providing
packet parsing, classification and flow-level processing for packets of established sessions. Packets
requiring processing beyond that provided by the secure port module are handed off to the management
module for further attention.

• The Management Module is based around a powerful combination of RISC processors and a
GigaScreen ASIC. It handles tasks not supported by the secure port module such as session setup and tear
down, IKE negotiation, all management access, and dedicated inter-system, high availability and
management interfaces.

• The High Performance Backplane interconnects all the internal system components. Using a multi-bus
architecture and a switched fabric, it provides an efficient communication path for control information,
data exchange and packet forwarding between modules.

GigaScreen ASIC and Multi-bus Architecture

For most of our firewall and VPN appliances, our GigaScreen ASIC provides hardware-based acceleration
for firewall and VPN functions, such as encryption, authentication, public key acceleration, security policy
search engine and network address translation acceleration. Each GigaScreen ASIC performs data encryption
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using the data encryption standard, or DES, which is an industry standard encryption algorithm, at speeds of up
to 1.2 Gbps, or up to 400 Mbps using 3DES encryption. Each GigaScreen ASIC also supports industry standard
authentication algorithms, such as MD-5 and SHA-1. The NetScreen-500, NetScreen-208 and NetScreen-204 are
based on system-level designs that incorporate a GigaScreen ASIC connected to a RISC processor through a
multi-bus architecture to accelerate processing-intensive security functions. This multi-bus architecture uses two
independent buses to connect our GigaScreen ASIC and host processor to the packet memory. Our multi-bus
architecture increases performance by reducing the bandwidth burden on the packet memory bus.

ScreenOS

Our ScreenOS is a security operating system integrated with a suite of applications designed to offer high
levels of security and performance that we have incorporated into all of our security systems and appliances. We
have developed ScreenOS to deliver a comprehensive suite of tightly integrated high performance network
security functions including firewall, VPN and denial of service protection. ScreenOS is designed to eliminate
traditional performance bottlenecks and known security flaws. It cannot be easily analyzed for vulnerabilities by
hackers since the source code is not generally publicly available. In addition to providing a secure operating
system and key security applications, ScreenOS delivers a robust set of technologies based on industry standard
protocols designed to allow our security systems and appliances to be integrated easily into our end customer’s
existing networks.

To facilitate network integration, ScreenOS allows our security systems and appliances to be configured to
work in one of three modes of operation, route mode, network address translation, or NAT, mode, and transparent
mode. In route mode, the network is configured to have different IP networks on each interface of the security
product, and our system or appliance enforces security policies as it routes traffic between different networks. In
NAT mode, IP addresses on one interface can be translated into different IP addresses as the traffic traverses the
device, allowing IP addresses to be hidden from outside view for increased security as well as allowing addresses to
be conserved. NetScreen’s transparent mode enables the security device to be integrated easily into a network
without any changes to IP addressing of the network. In transparent mode, the device will not be assigned an IP
address, which makes it harder for a hacker to detect or attack the security system or appliance.

ScreenOS supports a number of industry standard and specialized protocols to allow our devices to be
integrated into existing networks, security environments and network management environments. ScreenOS
supports dynamic routing protocols including OSPF, BGP and RIPv2. ScreenOS supports and is compatible with
authentication mechanisms including Radius servers, Secured token-based authentication and digital certificates
and certificate authorities from VeriSign, Inc., Entrust, Inc., Baltimore Technologies plc, Microsoft Corporation,
Netscape Communications Corp. and RSA Security Inc. ScreenOS supports industry standard management
protocols including simple network management protocol, or SNMP, syslog, telnet and secure shell, or ssh,
protocol, as well as proprietary management interfaces to our central management software and to NetIQ’s
WebTrends monitoring application.

ScreenOS version 5.0- Deep Inspection Firewall and Antivirus

Deep Inspection Firewall. ScreenOS version 5.0 incorporates new application-level attack protection
using elements of our IDP technology to enable what we call Deep Inspection firewall capabilities on our firewall
and VPN security appliances and systems. A Deep Inspection firewall can be deployed at the network perimeter
and is designed to prevent application-level attacks aimed at Internet-facing applications, such as Web, e-mail,
FTP and DNS. Our Deep Inspection firewall reduces or eliminates application-level attack ambiguities by
performing a variety of functions such as converting network packets to the application-level message being
transmitted and applying attack pattern matches where attacks are likely to be perpetrated. Our Deep Inspection
firewall then decides to accept or deny the traffic based on high impact protocol anomalies or any given attack
pattern. The Deep Inspection firewall can block application-level attacks at the Internet gateway so they never
reach their destination.
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Antivirus. ScreenOS 5.0 also enables the embedded antivirus capabilities on our NetScreen-5GT security
appliance. With antivirus scanning technology, the NetScreen-5GT with ScreenOS version 5.0 has the ability to stop
virus outbreaks, including blended attacks, at the corporate gateway before they reach users’ desktops. Additional
features also available in ScreenOS version 5.0 assist with antivirus protection on other NetScreen devices, which
facilitate redirection of relevant traffic by NetScreen devices to a third party device for content scanning.

High Availability Technology

The NetScreen-5400, NetScreen-5200, NetScreen-500, NetScreen-208, NetScreen-204, NetScreen-50 and
NetScreen-25 incorporate our ScreenOS high availability capabilities, which are based on version 2 of the
NetScreen Redundancy Protocol, or NSRPv2. NSRPv2 enables a redundant pair of our security systems to be
integrated into a high availability network architecture, with redundant physical connections between the systems
and the adjacent network switches. These systems can simultaneously process network traffic, called an “active-
active” configuration, and can synchronize system configurations, session states and IPSec tunnel states between the
systems using redundant, high availability connections between the two systems. This system synchronization
allows a redundant system to take over network traffic processing typically in less than one second after a system or
network failure to ensure that network traffic can continue to be forwarded. Using NetScreen’s “active-passive”
high availability configuration provides for synchronization of system configuration, session states and IPSec tunnel
states between an active appliance and a standby appliance. The NetScreen-50 supports the “active-passive”
configuration and the NetScreen-25 provides a feature called HA-Lite that supports the “active-passive”
configuration with synchronization of only system configurations. The rest of the NetScreen devices listed above
can support both “active-active” and “active-passive” configurations.

Virtual Systems Capability

The NetScreen-5400, NetScreen-5200 and NetScreen-500 also incorporate our patent pending ScreenOS
Virtual Systems capability. Used in conjunction with multiple physical interfaces or industry standard VLAN
technology, this architecture allows end customers to use a single system to create up to 500 virtual firewalls and
VPN gateways, each able to protect a unique security domain. Each Virtual System can have its own address
book, policies and management set based on the end customer’s requirements. As a result, our Virtual Systems
capability allows enterprises and government entities to implement multiple departmental security systems on a
single platform, and it enables Internet data center operators and carriers to deliver managed security services to
numerous individual users easily and cost effectively.

IDP MMD Attack Detection

The NetScreen-IDP 500, NetScreen-IDP 100 and NetScreen-IDP 10 appliances offer MMD, which utilizes
eight intrusion detection methods to increase the attack detection accuracy and which we believe provide the
broadest attack detection coverage available. These intrusion detection mechanisms include protocol anomaly,
backdoor, traffic anomaly, IP spoofing, Layer 2 and SYN-flood detection, a network honeypot and a technique
called Stateful Signature Detection. Stateful Signature Detection uses signatures that look for attack pattern
matches only in the relevant portions of the traffic where an intrusion can be perpetrated.

IVE Platform

The NetScreen-SA 5000, NetScreen-SA 3000, NetScreen-SA 1000 and NetScreen-SM 3000 appliances are
based upon our IVE platform, a hardened application security gateway. This platform includes hardware and
software features to allow our Secure Access and Secure Meeting products to be securely integrated with the
customer’s existing infrastructure. This platform includes a hardened web server, capabilities to allow continuity
of policies throughout the enterprise, security certifications to facilitate server authentication functionality,
clustering capabilities for high throughput and performance and stateful peering and clustering to increase
reliability and high availability of user, system, and session state.
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Scalable Central Management Software

We have developed our NetScreen-Security Manager, NetScreen-Global PRO and NetScreen-IDP Manager
applications to enable secure, scalable monitoring of devices, network traffic and security events, and device
configuration and policy administration. The NetScreen-Security Manager management software is our next
generation management platform that incorporates a scalable system architecture designed to allow the platform
to be rapidly extended to support large numbers of devices, additional ScreenOS features, and additional security
technologies in future releases. NetScreen-Security Manager’s architecture is comprised of a device server, a
GUI server, and a lightweight user interface (UI). To address the diverse management needs of the IT staff while
maintaining flexibility and performance, all device related functions are executed on the device server, while all
centralized configuration functions run in the GUI server. This separation of device server and GUI server
enables performance and flexibility. Both device and GUI components can reside on the same server where cost
and/or simplicity are the primary requirements, or reside on separate servers where performance and deployment
flexibility are more important. Independent of the chosen deployment of the device and GUI servers, the UI
provides the single point of access for the administrator to all of the information and capabilities of the system.
The NetScreen-Security Manager can support multiple simultaneous administrators by supporting multiple GUI
instances, powerful role based delegation of administrative rights and object locking that allows multiple
administrators to safely modify policies or devices concurrently.

Research and Development

We have assembled a team of engineers with experience in the fields of computing, network system design,
Internet routing protocols, Internet security standards, embedded software and network management software. In
addition to having the ability to build complex hardware and software systems, our engineering team has
experience in developing and delivering large, highly integrated ASICs and scalable security software.

We believe that strong product development capabilities are essential to our strategy of enhancing our core
technology, developing and incorporating additional functions, and maintaining the competitiveness of our
product offerings. We are building on our proprietary GigaScreen and GigaScreen-II ASICs and continuing to
develop next generation technology to support the anticipated growth in network bandwidth requirements. We
continue to develop new releases of our ScreenOS, IDP operating system, IVE platform and management
software to improve functionality, performance, scalability and the user interface.

Our research and development expenses were $43.9 million for the year ended September 30, 2003,
$32.8 million for the year ended September 30, 2002 and $25.6 million for the year ended September 30, 2001.

Manufacturing

We outsource the manufacturing of our systems and appliances. We contract our manufacturing
requirements to Flash Electronics, Inc., Solectron Corporation and another third party manufacturer. This
contracting activity extends from prototypes to full production and includes material procurement, assembly, test,
control and shipment to our customers. We design, specify and monitor all of the tests that are required to meet
internal and external quality standards. Our contracting arrangements provide us with the ability to deliver
products quickly to customers by using Flash Electronics’ and Solectron’s turnkey manufacturing and drop
shipment capabilities. In addition, we can adjust manufacturing volumes rapidly to meet changes in demand.
None of the agreements with these manufacturers provide for a fixed term of service. In addition, our proprietary
ASICs are fabricated by foundries operated by Toshiba America Electronic Components, Inc.

Competition

The market for network security products is highly competitive, and we expect competition to intensify in
the future. Competitors may gain market share and introduce new competitive products for the same markets and
customers currently served by our products. We currently compete principally on the basis of product security,
performance, reliability, scalability, manageability and cost-effectiveness. We believe that we compete favorably
on the basis of these factors.
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Current and potential competitors in our market include the following, all of which sell worldwide or have a
presence in most of the major geographical markets for their products:

• firewall and VPN software vendors, such as Check Point Software Technologies Ltd. and Symantec
Corporation;

• network equipment manufacturers, such as Cisco Systems, Inc., Lucent Technologies Inc., Nokia
Corporation and Nortel Networks Corporation;

• security appliance suppliers, such as SonicWALL, Inc., WatchGuard Technologies, Inc. and Symantec
Corporation;

• SSL VPN vendors, such as Cisco Systems, Inc., F5 Networks, Inc. and Symantec Corporation;

• intrusion detection system vendors including Internet Security Systems, Inc., Cisco Systems, Inc.,
Network Associates, Inc. and Enterasys Networks, Inc.;

• low-cost hardware suppliers with products that include network security functionality; and

• emerging security companies that may position their systems as replacements for our products.

Intellectual Property

Our success and ability to compete are substantially dependent upon our internally developed technology
and know-how. As of December 15, 2003, we have twenty-three patent applications pending in the United States
relating to our technologies and the design of our products. We have elected to extend three of these patent
applications to other countries. Our engineering teams have significant expertise in ASIC design. Our ScreenOS
operating system and applications and our NetScreen-Security Manager, NetScreen-Global PRO, NetScreen-
Global PRO Express, NetScreen-Global Manager and NetScreen-IDP Manager software were developed
internally and are protected by United States and international copyright laws.

While we rely on patent, copyright, trade secret and trademark law to protect our technology, we also
believe that factors such as the technological and creative skills of our personnel, new product developments,
frequent product enhancements and reliable product maintenance are essential to establishing and maintaining
our position. Other companies may develop technologies that are similar or superior to our technology.

Our success depends in part upon our ability to obtain necessary intellectual property rights and protect our
intellectual property rights. We may not be able to obtain the necessary intellectual property rights and other
parties may contest our intellectual property rights.

Backlog

Our backlog consists of orders that are placed by customers on credit hold, orders awaiting shipment or
orders that are subject to other constraints. However, orders may be cancelled by the customer prior to shipment.
For these reasons, we believe that our backlog at any given date is not material to an understanding of our
business.

Employees

As of September 30, 2003, we had 646 full-time employees, 181 of whom were engaged in research and
development, 277 in sales and marketing, 75 in customer service and support and 113 in administration and
operations. None of our employees is represented by a labor union. We have not experienced any work stoppages
and we consider our relations with our employees to be good.
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Acquisitions

On November 14, 2003, we completed the acquisition of Neoteris, Inc., a provider of secure sockets layer
virtual private networking (SSL VPN) solutions. We paid $20.0 million in cash and issued 9.7 million shares of
our common stock for all the outstanding stock of Neoteris. We also assumed all of the outstanding stock options
of Neoteris, which were converted into options to purchase 1.2 million shares of our common stock. We have
agreed to pay Neoteris stockholders and option holders up to an additional $30 million in cash upon the
achievement of certain revenue milestones. Through the acquisition of Neoteris, we added SSL VPN appliances
to our broad family of integrated network security solutions. Unless otherwise noted, the results of operations
presented in this report do not include the impact of the Neoteris acquisition.

Corporate Information

We were incorporated in Delaware in October 1997. Our principal executive offices are located at 805 11th

Avenue, Building 3, Sunnyvale, California 94089, and our telephone number at this location is (408) 543-2100.
Our common stock is traded on the Nasdaq National Market under the ticker symbol NSCN. Our primary Web
site address is www.netscreen.com. Through a link on our Investor Relations section of our Web site, we make
available the following filings as soon as reasonably practicable after they are electronically filed with or
furnished to the SEC: our Annual Report on Form 10-K, Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q, Current Reports on
Form 8-K and any amendments to those reports filed or furnished pursuant to Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934. All such filings are available free of charge. The information on our Web site is
not incorporated by reference into this annual report.

Item 2. Properties.

We occupy approximately 156,000 square feet in Sunnyvale, California pursuant to a lease that will expire
on May 13, 2008. We may lease an additional 22,000 square feet in this facility, exercisable at our option
anytime through February 14, 2004. We may need to lease additional space to accommodate future growth.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings.

We are subject to legal proceedings, claims and litigation arising in the ordinary course of business. While
the outcome of these matters is currently not determinable, we do not expect that the ultimate costs to resolve
these matters will have a material adverse effect on our consolidated financial position, results of operations or
cash flows.

Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders.

Not applicable.
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PART II

Item 5. Market for Registrant’s Common Equity and Related Stockholder Matters.

Price Range of Common Stock

Our common stock has traded on the Nasdaq National Market under the symbol “NSCN” since our initial
public offering of stock on December 12, 2001. Prior to this time, there was no public market for our common
stock. The following table presents the high and low sales price per share of our common stock for the periods
indicated, as reported on the Nasdaq National Market:

High Low

Fiscal Year ended September 30, 2003
Fourth Quarter . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $27.29 $19.95
Third Quarter . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $24.50 $16.81
Second Quarter . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $20.80 $15.32
First Quarter . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $18.00 $ 9.94

High Low

Fiscal Year ended September 30, 2002
Fourth Quarter . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $14.00 $ 8.29
Third Quarter . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $16.46 $ 7.76
Second Quarter . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $27.95 $12.90
First Quarter (beginning December 12, 2001) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $24.69 $20.95

The market price of our common stock has been volatile. See “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations—Factors That May Affect Our Business and Future Results of
Operations and Financial Condition.”

On December 15, 2003, we had 92,231,362 shares of our common stock outstanding held by 320 stockholders
of record. Because brokers and other institutions hold many of the shares on behalf of stockholders, we believe the
total number of beneficial holders is significantly greater than that represented by these record holders.

Dividend Policy

We have never declared or paid any cash dividends on our capital stock. We currently expect to retain future
earnings, if any, for use in the operation and expansion of our business and do not anticipate paying any
dividends in the foreseeable future.
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Item 6. Selected Consolidated Financial Data.

The selected consolidated financial data presented below should be read in conjunction with “Management’s
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations,” our consolidated financial
statements and the related notes appearing elsewhere in this report. The consolidated statements of operations
data presented below for the years ended September 30, 2003, 2002 and 2001 and the consolidated balance sheets
data as of September 30, 2003 and 2002 have been derived from our audited consolidated financial statements
appearing elsewhere in this report. The consolidated statements of operations data for the years ended September
30, 2000 and 1999 and the consolidated balance sheets data as of September 30, 2001, 2000 and 1999 have been
derived from audited consolidated financial statements not appearing in this report. The historical results are not
necessarily indicative of the operating results to be expected in the future. Unless otherwise noted, the results of
operations presented in this report do not include the impact of the Neoteris acquisition.

Year Ended September 30,

2003 2002 2001 2000 1999

(in thousands, except per share amounts)

Consolidated Statement of Operations Data:
Revenues . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $245,342 $138,482 $ 85,563 $ 26,584 $ 5,871
Gross margin . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $189,222 $101,881 $ 59,767 $ 18,209 $ 4,183
Income (loss) from operations . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 37,194 $ (11,674) $(32,223) $(33,478) $(19,810)
Benefit (provision) for income taxes(1) . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 10,141 $ (4,058) $ (168) $ — $ —
Net income (loss) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 51,520 $ (12,371) $(31,305) $(33,021) $(19,730)
Deemed dividend on Series E and Series F redeemable
convertible preferred stock . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ — $ (28,743) $ (2,923) $ (699) $ —

Net income (loss) applicable to common
stockholders . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 51,520 $ (41,114) $(34,228) $(33,720) $(19,730)

Basic net income (loss) per share applicable to
common stockholders . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 0.65 $ (0.68) $ (2.05) $ (2.82) $ (2.99)

Shares used in computing basic net income (loss) per
share applicable to common stockholders . . . . . . . . . 79,110 60,564 16,696 11,954 6,598

Diluted net income (loss) per share applicable to
common stockholders . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 0.61 $ (0.68) $ (2.05) $ (2.82) $ (2.99)

Shares used in computing diluted net income (loss) per
share applicable to common stockholders . . . . . . . . . 84,694 60,564 16,696 11,954 6,598

(1) During the year ended September 30, 2003, we reversed $29.6 million of valuation allowance for deferred
taxes.

September 30,

2003 2002 2001 2000 1999

(in thousands)

Consolidated Balance Sheet Data:
Cash, cash equivalents and short-term investments . . . . $340,652 $249,864 $ 17,655 $ 31,869 $ 5,947
Working capital . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $322,237 $223,296 $ 8,330 $ 23,964 $ 4,177
Total assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $491,723 $346,684 $ 50,201 $ 48,115 $ 10,390
Total long-term obligations, less current portion . . . . . . $ 2,042 $ 4,090 $ 2,663 $ 673 $ 580
Redeemable convertible preferred stock . . . . . . . . . . . . $ — $ — $ 56,542 $ 53,629 $ 16,497
Total stockholders’ equity (net capital deficiency) . . . . $396,929 $288,889 $(42,611) $(27,683) $(11,693)
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Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.

Forward-Looking Statements

This Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations section
should be read in conjunction with the “Selected Consolidated Financial Data” and our consolidated financial
statements and related notes appearing elsewhere in this report. In many cases, you can identify forward-looking
statements by terms such as “may,” “will,” “should,” “expect,” “plan,” “anticipate,” “believe,” “estimate,”
“potential,” “intend” or “continue,” or comparable terminology. Our forward-looking statements include our
expectations about revenue, revenue mix, channel mix, income taxes, cost of revenues and various operating
expenses. Our actual results may differ materially from those anticipated in these forward-looking statements as
a result of many factors, including, but not limited to, those presented below, under the caption “Factors That
May Affect Our Business and Future Results of Operations and Financial Condition,” and elsewhere in this
report. We undertake no obligation to update any forward-looking statements for any reason, except as required
by law, even if new information becomes available or other events occur in the future.

Overview

We develop, market and sell a broad family of integrated network security solutions for enterprises, carriers
and government entities. Our security solutions provide key technologies such as firewall, virtual private
networking (VPN), denial of service protection, antivirus and intrusion detection and prevention in a line of
easy-to-manage security systems and appliances. Our products are based on industry standard communication
protocols and can be combined with our management software so that they can be easily integrated into
networks, easily managed and will interoperate with other security devices and applications.

On November 14, 2003, we completed our acquisition of Neoteris, Inc., a provider of secure sockets layer
virtual private networking (SSL VPN) solutions. We paid $20.0 million in cash and issued 9.7 million shares of our
common stock for all the outstanding stock of Neoteris. We also assumed all of the outstanding stock options of
Neoteris, which were converted into options to purchase 1.2 million shares of our common stock. We have agreed
to pay Neoteris stockholders and option holders up to an additional $30 million in cash upon the achievement of
certain revenue milestones. Neoteris’ results of operations are not included in our consolidated results of operations
for the year ended September 30, 2003. We expect to record substantial goodwill and other intangible assets in
connection with the acquisition. In accordance with provisions of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No.
142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets,” goodwill resulting from the acquisition will not be amortized, but will
be reviewed periodically for impairment. The other intangible assets will be amortized on a straight-line basis over
their estimated useful lives. We also expect to incur substantial deferred stock compensation and operating expenses
as a result of this acquisition. Achieving the anticipated benefits of the merger will depend in part upon whether the
operations, products and technology of Neoteris can be integrated with our operations, products and technology in a
timely and cost-effective manner. The process of combining the two companies is a complex, expensive and time-
consuming process and may cause an interruption of, or loss of momentum in, the development and sales activities
and operations of both companies. We cannot assure you that any part or all of the integration will be accomplished
on a timely basis, or at all. Unless otherwise noted, the results of operations presented in this report do not include
the impact of the Neoteris acquisition.

We derive a substantial portion of our revenues from outside the Americas. Revenues from outside the
Americas were 60.6% in the year ended September 30, 2003, compared to 55.3% in the year ended
September 30, 2002 and 46.8% in the year ended September 30, 2001. Specifically, revenues from Asia and the
Pacific Rim (APAC) accounted for 38.5%, 33.7% and 29.5% of our total revenues in the years ended
September 30, 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively. Revenues from Europe, the Middle East and Africa (EMEA)
accounted for 22.1%, 21.6% and 17.3% of our total revenues in the years ended September 30, 2003, 2002 and
2001, respectively. The increase in revenues from outside the Americas as a percentage of total revenues was
primarily attributable to increasing demand for our products in APAC markets, particularly in Japan. There can
be no assurance that we will be able to maintain or increase the demand for our products in international markets.
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In addition, since our sales are currently priced in U.S. dollars, a strengthening of the dollar could make our
products less competitive in foreign markets and our accounts receivable more difficult to collect.

We derive revenues primarily from sales of our hardware-based security systems and appliances and
maintenance arrangements and, to a lesser extent, from sales of software products and services. We achieved
profitability on a generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) basis for the first time in fiscal 2003. Prior to
fiscal 2003, we incurred losses in each fiscal period since our inception. As of September 30, 2003, we had an
accumulated deficit of $81.0 million. We experienced consecutive improvements in revenues and income before
income taxes in each quarter of fiscal 2003. In the first through fourth quarters of fiscal 2003, our revenues were
$51.1 million, $58.3 million, $64.3 million and $71.6 million and our income before income taxes was $6.3
million, $9.5 million, $11.8 million and $13.8 million, respectively. There can be no assurance that our revenues
will continue to grow at the same rate as in the past, at the rate we expect or that we will achieve similar results
in future periods. There can also be no assurance that we will maintain profitability in future periods.

Cost of product revenues consists of the costs associated with manufacturing, assembling and testing our
products, related overhead costs, compensation and other costs related to manufacturing support and logistics. We
rely on contract manufacturers to manufacture our hardware products. Accordingly, a significant portion of our cost
of product revenues consists of payments to these contract manufacturers. Cost of maintenance and service revenues
consists of customer support costs, training and professional service expenses and warranty-related costs.

Our gross margin has been, and will continue to be, affected by a variety of factors, including competition,
the mix and average selling prices of products, maintenance and services, new product introductions and
enhancements, the cost of components and manufacturing labor, fluctuations in manufacturing volumes,
component shortages and the mix of distribution channels through which our products are sold. Our gross margin
will be adversely affected by price declines if we are unable to reduce costs on existing products and do not
continue to introduce new products with higher margins.

Research and development expenses consist of salaries and related expenses for development and
engineering personnel, fees paid to consultants, license fees paid to third parties and prototype costs related to the
design, development, testing and enhancement of our ASICs, security systems and appliances, ScreenOS, IDP
software, management applications and VPN client software. We expense our research and development costs as
they are incurred. Several components of our research and development effort require significant expenditures,
the timing of which can cause significant quarterly variability in our expenses. We are devoting substantial
resources to the continued development of new products. To meet the changing requirements of our customers,
we will need to fund investments in several development projects in parallel. As a result, we expect our research
and development expenses to increase in absolute dollars in the future.

Sales and marketing expenses consist of salaries, commissions and related expenses for personnel engaged in
marketing, sales and sales support functions and costs associated with promotional and other marketing activities.
We intend to expand our sales operations substantially, both domestically and internationally, in order to increase
sales of our products. In addition, we believe part of our future success will be dependent upon establishing
successful relationships with a variety of additional resellers in other countries. We expect that sales and marketing
expenses will increase in absolute dollars as we expand our sales efforts in additional domestic and international
locations, hire additional sales and marketing personnel and initiate additional marketing programs.

General and administrative expenses consist of salaries and related expenses for executive, finance,
accounting, legal and human resources personnel, professional fees and corporate expenses. We expect general
and administrative expenses to increase in absolute dollars as we employ additional personnel and incur
additional costs related to the growth of our business and our operation as a public company, including new
corporate governance requirements.

We account for stock-based awards to employees using the intrinsic value method in accordance with
Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 25, “Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees” (“APB 25”).
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Expenses associated with stock-based compensation are being amortized ratably over the vesting periods of the
individual awards consistent with the method described in FASB Interpretation No. 28. During the years ended
September 30, 2003, 2002 and 2001, we recorded amortization of deferred stock compensation of $23.2 million,
$24.3 million and $19.0 million, respectively. This deferred stock compensation expense relates to stock options
granted to individuals in all cost of revenues and operating expense categories and has been included in those
categories. At September 30, 2003, $16.0 million of deferred stock compensation related to employee stock
options remained unamortized. This amount will be amortized as follows (in thousands):

Year ending September 30:
2004 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $11,473
2005 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 4,242
2006 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 262

Total deferred stock compensation . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $15,977

These numbers exclude deferred stock compensation related to the acquisition of Neoteris, which we expect
to be substantial.

The income tax benefit in the year ended September 30, 2003 was due primarily to the release of a valuation
allowance on our cumulative deferred tax assets, offset by a current tax provision for federal, state and foreign
income taxes. The current provision for income taxes is primarily related to federal and state income taxes and
income taxes generated on income in tax jurisdictions outside the United States. The current provision for
income taxes also reflects the impact of non-deductible stock-based compensation expense.

We recorded a deemed dividend of $27.6 million in the year ended September 30, 2002 related to our
October 2001 issuance of Series F preferred stock at a price subsequently deemed to be below its fair value. The
deemed dividend was calculated based on the difference between the assumed fair market value at the time of our
initial public offering (IPO) and the purchase price of the Series F preferred stock. We also recorded deemed
dividends of $1.1 million and $2.9 million in the years ended September 30, 2002 and 2001, respectively, to
account for cumulative dividend rights attributable to our Series E and F preferred stock. At the time of our IPO,
all outstanding preferred stock converted to common stock and all dividend rights, as well as voting and
liquidation rights, attributable to the preferred stock terminated.

Critical Accounting Policies

The methods, estimates and judgments we use in applying our accounting policies have a significant impact
on the results we report in our financial statements. Some of our accounting policies require us to make difficult
and subjective judgments, often as a result of the need to make estimates of matters that are inherently uncertain.
Our most critical accounting estimates include: the assessment of technical complexity and market acceptance of
technically complex products, which impact revenue recognition; deferral of revenue for distributors and
value-added resellers and revenue reserves, which impact revenue recognition; potential return rates and
probability of collections, which impact accounts receivable and warranty reserves; the valuation of inventory,
which impacts cost of sales and gross margin; the assessment of recoverability of goodwill and other intangible
assets, which impacts write-offs of goodwill and identified intangible assets; and the assessment of our
realization of deferred tax assets, which impacts income taxes.

Revenue recognition—general

We derive our revenues primarily from sales of our hardware-based security systems and appliances and
maintenance arrangements and, to a lesser extent, from sales of software products and services. We generally
recognize revenue when persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists, delivery or customer acceptance, where
applicable, has occurred, the fee is fixed or determinable and collectibility is probable. We defer a portion of
product revenues based on the value of basic maintenance services bundled with each product sale. For these
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bundled arrangements, revenue is allocated among each element of the bundle at the time of sale based on the
fair value of each element of the bundle. The fair value of each element is determined by reference to the prices
we charge when each element is sold separately. Maintenance revenue is deferred and recognized over the
applicable maintenance period. We also derive a portion of our revenues from sales of separate extended
maintenance arrangements.

For newly introduced technically complex products, we defer recognition of revenues from the sale of these
products until they have successfully performed in the marketplace and sales returns are not unusually high.
Determining which products are sufficiently technically complex to merit this revenue deferral requires us to
exercise judgment, as does the determination of when products have achieved sufficient acceptance in the market
so that deferral is no longer appropriate. The determination of which products are complex and the timing of the
end of deferral for particular products, can be expected to vary. If we define technically complex products too
broadly, we will defer revenue unnecessarily; if we define these products too narrowly, revenue will be
recognized earlier but product returns and warranty claims will be higher in future periods.

Revenue recognition—distributors and value-added resellers

We sell to value-added resellers and distributors. We derived 92.1% of our total revenues from value-added
resellers and distributors in the year ended September 30, 2003. We defer revenue on sales to our distributors
until the distributor has sold our products to its customers. Our agreements with distributors provide for limited
stock rotation and price protection rights. Stock rotation rights provide distributors with the right to exchange
unsold inventory for alternate products of equal or greater value. Price protection rights grant distributors the
right to credit on purchases in the event of decreases in the prices of our products. Our agreements with value-
added resellers typically do not include stock rotation or price protection rights. At the time of shipment to value-
added resellers, we reserve for estimated returns and exchanges. These revenue reserves are estimated and
adjusted periodically based on historical rates of returns and allowances, inventory levels for value-added
resellers that submit inventory or sell-through reports, the volume of sales to value-added resellers that we ship
directly to end customers and for sales to value-added resellers that do not submit inventory or sell-through
reports, accounts receivable balances, payment history and other related factors. These reserves require the
exercise of our judgment in determining if historical experience applies to new products and to new distributors
and value-added resellers. If our estimate of returns and exchanges is too low, additional charges will be incurred
in future periods and these additional charges could have a material adverse effect on our financial position and
results of operations.

Sales Return and Warranty Reserves

We record sales return and warranty reserves based on estimates of expected future returns and allowances
and expected future repair and replacement costs. We record a sales return reserve that approximates the
aggregate amount of expected future returns and allowances. Our sales return reserve is based on past return
history, product mix, channel mix and, in some cases, allowances for specific customers based on several factors
such as return rights included in our agreements with these customers. Our warranty reserve approximates the
aggregate amount of estimated future repair and replacement costs for our products under warranty. Our warranty
reserve is based on historical product repair and replacement information. In the event we determine that our
current or future sales returns and allowances and product repair and replacement costs exceed our estimates, an
adjustment to these reserves would be charged to earnings in the period such determination is made.

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

We have a large, diversified customer base, which includes customers located in foreign countries. We
monitor the creditworthiness of our customers but have experienced losses related to our accounts receivable in
the past. We record an allowance for doubtful accounts based on past history, current economic conditions and
the composition of our accounts receivable aging and, in some cases, make allowances for specific customers
based on several factors, such as the creditworthiness of those customers and payment history. These allowances
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require our subjective judgment. Actual write-offs may differ from the allowances for doubtful accounts and this
difference may have a material effect on our financial position and results of operations.

Inventory

Given the volatility of the networking market, the rapid obsolescence of technology and short product life
cycles, we write down inventories to net realizable value based on backlog and forecasted demand. However,
backlog is subject to revisions, cancellations and rescheduling. If actual demand is lower than our forecasted
demand and we fail to reduce manufacturing output accordingly, we could be required to record additional
inventory write-downs, which would have a negative effect on our gross margin.

Valuation of Long-Lived Assets Including Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

We review property, plant and equipment, goodwill and other intangible assets for impairment whenever
events or circumstances indicate the carrying amount of the assets may not be recoverable. At a minimum, this
review is conducted annually. Our review of goodwill and other intangible assets is based on the estimated future
cash flows the assets are expected to generate. Our review is based on our best estimate of a variety of factors,
including future market growth, forecasted revenues and costs and a strategic review of our business and
operations. In the event we determine that an asset is impaired in the future, an adjustment to the value of the
asset would be charged to earnings in the period such determination is made.

Income Taxes

For financial statement purposes, we are required to estimate our income taxes in each of the jurisdictions in
which we operate. This involves making estimates and judgments in determining our current income tax
exposure along with assessing temporary differences, which results from the differing treatment of items for tax
and accounting purposes. These temporary differences result in deferred tax assets and liabilities, which are
included in our balance sheet. We then determine the likelihood that that the deferred tax assets will be realized.
We record a valuation allowance to reduce deferred tax assets if, it is more likely than not, that a portion or, the
entire deferred tax asset will not be realized. The realization of deferred tax assets depends upon taxable income.
In order to determine whether all or a portion of the deferred tax asset should be reduced by a valuation
allowance, we consider the following sources of taxable income: future taxable income; prudent and feasible tax
planning strategies; and existing temporary differences that will reverse in future periods that give rise to
realization. As of September 30, 2003, we believe that all of our recorded deferred tax assets would be realized.
In the event we were to determine that we would be able to realize deferred tax assets in the future in excess of
the net recorded deferred tax assets, an adjustment to the net deferred tax assets would increase net income (or
decrease net loss) in the period when such determination was made. Likewise, should we determine that we are
not able to realize all or part of our deferred tax assets in the future, an adjustment to deferred tax assets would be
charged to earnings in the period when such determination was made.

Results of Operations for the Years Ended September 30, 2003 and 20021

Revenues

Product Revenues. Revenues from sales of our products increased 75.8% to $200.4 million in the year
ended September 30, 2003 from $113.9 million in the year ended September 30, 2002. This increase was
primarily attributable to increased sales of all product categories, including IDP products, and include revenue
from shipments made in the period and deferred revenue recognized from shipments in prior quarters. Hardware
revenue units increased to approximately 128,000 units in the year ended September 30, 2003 from
approximately 74,000 units in the year ended September 30, 2002.

1 Results exclude impact of the Neoteris acquisition.
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Maintenance and Service Revenues. Revenues from maintenance and services increased 83.3% to $45.0
million in the year ended September 30, 2003 from $24.5 million in the year ended September 30, 2002. This
increase was the result of the higher volume of products shipped and the related recognition of revenues
associated with the portion of product revenues attributable to maintenance and services over the applicable
maintenance period, as well as increased customer purchases of enhanced service offerings and renewals of
maintenance contracts across a larger installed base of customers.

No single customer accounted for 10% or more of our total revenues in either year.

We cannot assure you that our revenues will continue to increase in absolute dollars or at the rate at which
they have grown in recent periods, or at all.

Cost of Revenues; Gross Margin

Product Cost of Revenues. Product cost of revenues increased 51.2% to $43.4 million in the year ended
September 30, 2003 from $28.7 million in the year ended September 30, 2002. This increase reflects the greater
quantity of products sold and increased overhead costs, partially offset by reductions in the prices at which we
purchase our products from our manufacturers. Product cost of revenues included stock-based compensation and
amortization of intangible assets of $2.3 million and $1.7 million in the years ended September 30, 2003 and
2002, respectively.

Product Gross Margin. Product gross margin as a percentage of product revenues was 78.3% in the year
ended September 30, 2003 compared to 74.8% in the year ended September 30, 2002. The increase in product
gross margin was primarily attributable to reductions in the prices at which we purchase our products from our
manufacturers and, to a lesser extent, changes in the mix of products sold. We expect our selling prices and
product gross margin percentage to decline over time.

Maintenance and Service Cost of Revenues. Maintenance and service cost of revenues increased 61.1%
to $12.7 million in the year ended September 30, 2003 from $7.9 million in the year ended September 30, 2002.
This increase was primarily related to increases in costs related to the expansion of our customer support
infrastructure and the larger installed base of products for which we provide service and, to a lesser extent,
increased third party professional services costs that generate service revenue. Maintenance and service cost of
revenues included stock-based compensation of $1.1 million and $1.0 million in the years ended September 30,
2003 and 2002, respectively.

Maintenance and Service Gross Margin. Maintenance and service gross margin as a percentage of
maintenance and service revenues increased to 71.8% in the year ended September 30, 2003 compared to 67.9%
in the year ended September 30, 2002. The increase in maintenance and service gross margin was primarily
attributable to our ability to support higher service revenues without increasing our existing organization and
support infrastructure costs at the same rate. We expect our maintenance and service gross margin percentage to
decline over time.

Operating Expenses

Research and Development Expenses. Research and development expenses increased 33.8% to $43.9
million in the year ended September 30, 2003 from $32.8 million in the year ended September 30, 2002. These
expenses represented 17.9% and 23.7% of total revenues for these periods, respectively. The dollar increase was
primarily attributable to increased personnel costs as a result of increased headcount, including salaries and
bonuses. Research and development expenses included stock-based compensation and amortization of intangible
assets of $7.7 million in both of the years ended September 30, 2003 and 2002.

Sales and Marketing Expenses. Sales and marketing expenses increased 39.1% to $88.9 million in the
year ended September 30, 2003 from $63.9 million in the year ended September 30, 2002. These expenses
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represented 36.2% and 46.2% of total revenues for these periods, respectively. The dollar increase was primarily
related to the expansion of our sales and marketing organizations, including increased compensation-related
expenses resulting from the growth of our sales force and higher commissions expense associated with increased
revenues and, to a lesser extent, increased marketing-related program costs. Sales and marketing expenses
included stock-based compensation and amortization of intangible assets of $10.3 million and $11.1 million in
the years ended September 30, 2003 and 2002, respectively.

General and Administrative Expenses. General and administrative expenses increased 14.2% to $19.2
million in the year ended September 30, 2003 from $16.8 million in the year ended September 30, 2002. These
expenses represented 7.8% and 12.1% of total revenues for these periods, respectively. The dollar increase was
primarily related to increased consulting services expense and increased personnel costs and related support
costs, including corporate governance costs, partially offset by a reduction in bad debt expense. General and
administrative expenses included stock-based compensation of $2.8 million in both of the years ended
September 30, 2003 and 2002.

Stock-Based Compensation. During the year ended September 30, 2003, we recorded stock-based
compensation expense of $23.2 million. As of September 30, 2003, $16.0 million of deferred stock compensation
remained unamortized. This amount will be amortized through the quarter ending December 31, 2005.

Interest and Other Income, Net

Interest and other income, net, was $4.2 million in the year ended September 30, 2003 compared to $3.4
million in the year ended September 30, 2002. The increase in interest and other income was primarily a result of
increased interest earned on higher average cash, cash equivalent and short-term investment balances in the year
ended September 30, 2003, partially offset by a lower average investment income yield.

Provision for Income Taxes

We recorded a benefit for incomes taxes of $10.1 million for the year ended September 30, 2003 primarily
due to the reversal of a valuation allowance of $29.6 million. The valuation allowance was reversed because we
determined that it is more likely than not that the deferred tax assets will be realized in the foreseeable future.
This determination was made principally based on our earnings history over the past several years, our history of
meeting forecasts and our estimate of future taxable income. A portion of our deferred tax asset valuation
allowance was not reversed due to acquired tax attributes that are subject to an annual limitation imposed by
Section 382 of the Internal Revenue Code. If these acquired tax attributes are realized, they will first reduce
unamortized goodwill, then other non-current intangible assets of acquired subsidiaries, and then expenses.

As of September 30, 2003, the Company’s state tax credit carry forwards were $2.0 million, which currently
carry forward indefinitely. As of September 30, 2003, the Company had federal and state net operating loss carry
forwards of $42.8 million and $38.8 million, respectively. If not utilized, the net operating loss carry forwards
will begin to expire in fiscal 2013. Utilization of the net operating loss and tax credit carry forwards is subject to
a substantial annual limitation due to ownership change limitations in Section 382 of the Internal Revenue Code.
California suspended the use of state net operating loss carry forwards for fiscal 2003.

Results of Operations for the Years Ended September 30, 2002 and 20012

Revenues

Product Revenues. Revenues from sales of our products increased 60.0% to $113.9 million in the year
ended September 30, 2002 from $71.2 million in the year ended September 30, 2001. This increase was

2 Results exclude impact of the Neoteris acquisition.
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attributable to a higher volume of product shipments that were recognized as revenue during the year as well as
an increase in the amount of deferred revenue recognized from sales to our customers. Increased product
shipments consisted primarily of new products and reflected generally higher selling prices. Hardware revenue
units increased to approximately 74,000 units in the year ended September 30, 2002 from approximately 42,000
units in the year ended September 30, 2001.

Maintenance and Service Revenues. Revenues from maintenance and services increased 70.8% to $24.5
million in the year ended September 30, 2002 from $14.4 million in the year ended September 30, 2001. This
increase was a result of the higher volume of products shipped and the related recognition of revenues associated
with the portion of product revenues attributable to maintenance and services over the applicable maintenance
period, as well as increased maintenance renewals on a larger installed base of customers.

No single customer accounted for 10% or more of our total revenues in either year.

Cost of Revenues; Gross Margin

Product Cost of Revenues. Cost of product revenues increased 29.8% to $28.7 million in the year ended
September 30, 2002 from $22.1 million in the year ended September 30, 2001. This increase was related
primarily to the increase in our revenues and, to a lesser extent, write downs taken against our inventories. These
increases were partially offset by reductions in the prices at which we purchase our products from our
manufacturers. Product cost of revenues included stock-based compensation and amortization of intangible assets
of $1.7 million and $1.4 million in the years ended September 30, 2002 and 2001, respectively.

Product Gross Margin. Product gross margin as a percentage of product revenues was 74.8% in the year
ended September 30, 2002 compared to 68.9% in the year ended September 30, 2001. The increase in gross
margin percentage was primarily attributable to the increased sales of our higher-margin, mid-range products and
increased sales, along with improved margins, of our low-range products.

Maintenance and Service Cost of Revenues. Maintenance and service cost of revenues increased 114.6%
to $7.9 million in the year ended September 30, 2002 from $3.7 million in the year ended September 30, 2001.
This increase was primarily related to increases in costs related to the expansion of our customer support
infrastructure and larger installed base of products for which we provide service. Maintenance and service cost of
revenues included stock-based compensation and amortization of intangible assets of $1.0 million and $1.2
million in the years ended September 30, 2002 and 2001, respectively.

Maintenance and Service Gross Margin. Maintenance and service gross margin as a percentage of
maintenance and service revenues was 67.9% in the year ended September 30, 2002 compared to 74.5% in the
year ended September 30, 2001. The decrease in gross margin percentage was primarily attributable to increased
costs as we expanded our worldwide customer support infrastructure in order to grow that business.

Operating Expenses

Research and Development Expenses. Research and development expenses increased 28.3% to $32.8
million in the year ended September 30, 2002 from $25.6 million in the year ended September 30, 2001. These
expenses represented 23.7% and 29.9% of total revenues for these periods, respectively. The dollar increase was
primarily attributable to increased personnel costs as a result of increased headcount. Research and development
expenses included stock-based compensation and amortization of intangible assets of $7.7 million and $6.4
million in the years ended September 30, 2002 and 2001, respectively.

Sales and Marketing Expenses. Sales and marketing expenses increased 16.7% to $63.9 million in the
year ended September 30, 2002 from $54.8 million in the year ended September 30, 2001. These expenses
represented 46.2% and 64.0% of total revenues for these periods, respectively. The dollar increase in sales and
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marketing expenses was primarily related to the expansion of our sales and marketing organizations, including
increased compensation-related expenses resulting from the growth of our sales force and higher commissions
expense associated with increased revenues, increased marketing-related program costs and, to a lesser extent, to
increases in other sales office costs associated with the expansion of our sales force. These increases were
partially offset by a reduction in direct advertising expenditures. Sales and marketing expenses included stock-
based compensation and amortization of intangible assets of $11.1 million and $9.3 million in the years ended
September 30, 2002 and 2001, respectively.

General and Administrative Expenses. General and administrative expenses increased 44.7% to $16.8
million in the year ended September 30, 2002 from $11.6 million in the year ended September 30, 2001. These
expenses represented 12.1% and 13.6% of total revenues for these periods, respectively. The dollar increase was
primarily related to increased personnel costs as a result of increased headcount from the expansion of our
general and administrative staff and greater infrastructure requirements, including those associated with being a
public company. These increased costs were partially offset by a reduction in bad debt expense. General and
administrative expenses included stock-based compensation of $2.8 million and $704,000 in the years ended
September 30, 2002 and 2001, respectively.

Stock-Based Compensation. In connection with the grant of employee stock options in the year ended
September 30, 2002, we recorded deferred stock compensation of $13.5 million. We recorded deferred stock
compensation of approximately $587,000 in connection with stock options assumed in the acquisition of
OneSecure, Inc. During the year ended September 30, 2002, we recorded stock-based compensation expense of
$24.3 million. As of September 30, 2002, $42.2 million of deferred stock compensation remained unamortized.
This amount will be amortized through the quarter ending December 31, 2005.

Interest and Other Income, Net

Interest and other income, net, was $3.4 million in the year ended September 30, 2002 compared to interest
and other income, net, of $1.1 million in the year ended September 30, 2001. The increase in interest and other
income was primarily a result of increased interest earned on higher average cash, cash equivalent and short-term
investment balances in the year ended September 30, 2002. The increased interest income was partially offset by
foreign exchange losses arising from the re-measurement of our international entities’ financial statements into
U.S. dollars and higher interest expense in the year ended September 30, 2002 due to higher average levels of
debt and capital lease obligation in that year.

Provision for Income Taxes

We recorded an income tax provision of $4.1 million for the year ended September 30, 2002, primarily
related to federal income taxes and income taxes currently payable on income generated in non-U.S. tax
jurisdictions for which no U.S. tax benefit is currently recognizable. We recorded an income tax provision of
approximately $168,000 for the year ended September 30, 2001, primarily related to income taxes currently
payable on income generated in non-U.S. tax jurisdictions for which no U.S. benefit is currently recognizable.
We had gross deferred tax assets, net of liabilities, of $43.6 million as of September 30, 2002 and $25.3 million
as of September 30, 2001. Realization of deferred tax assets is dependent on our ability to generate future taxable
income, the timing and amount of which are uncertain. Accordingly, a valuation allowance, in an amount equal
to the total gross deferred tax assets as of September 30, 2002 and September 30, 2001, has been established to
reflect those uncertainties. Our deferred tax assets primarily relate to net operating loss carry forwards and
deferred compensation. As of September 30, 2002, we had federal and state net operating loss carryforwards of
$45.7 million and $37.6 million, respectively. We also had research and development tax credit carry forwards of
$4.3 million. The net operating loss and tax credit carry forwards will expire at various dates beginning in 2013,
if not utilized. Utilization of the net operating loss and tax credit carry forwards may be subject to a substantial
annual limitation due to the ownership change limitations provided by the Internal Revenue Code Section 382
and Section 383 and similar state provisions. The annual limitation may result in the expiration of net operating
loss and tax credit carry forwards before utilization.
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Liquidity and Capital Resources

As of September 30, 2003, our principal source of liquidity was $340.7 million of cash, cash equivalents and
short-term investments. At that date, we had future minimum lease payments under non-cancelable operating
leases of $14.5 million and long-term debt and restructuring obligations, including the current portion, of $2.7
million. At September 30, 2003, we had no material commitments for capital expenditures, but we expect to
spend between $11.0 million and $13.0 million on capital expenditures in fiscal year 2004.

Since our inception, we have financed our operations primarily through sales of our equity securities and,
more recently, from cash generated from operations. We raised a total of $82.6 million through the private sale of
convertible preferred stock prior to our December 2001 initial public offering, in which we sold 11,500,000
shares of common stock and realized net proceeds of $168.6 million.

Net cash provided by operating activities was $85.0 million for the year ended September 30, 2003,
compared to $31.7 million for the year ended September 30, 2002. Net cash provided by operating activities for
the year ended September 30, 2003 was primarily the result of cash generated from our net income, after
adjusting for noncash operating expenses, of $81.0 million, tax benefits from employee stock option plans of
$15.0 million and increases in deferred revenue, accounts payable and accrued expenses of $42.5 million,
partially offset by an increase in accounts receivable due to higher revenues and the realization of deferred
income tax assets due to the reversal of tax valuation allowances. The net cash provided by operating activities
for the year ended September 30, 2002 was primarily the result of cash generated from our net loss, after
adjusting for noncash operating expenses, of $16.6 million and an increase in deferred revenue.

Net cash used in investing activities for the years ended September 30, 2003 and 2002 was $58.4 million and
$236.0 million, respectively. Net cash used in investing activities for the year ended September 30, 2003 was due to
net purchases of short-term investments and purchases of property and equipment. Net cash used in investing
activities for the year ended September 30, 2002 was almost entirely due to net purchases of short-term investments.

Net cash provided by financing activities for the year ended September 30, 2003 was $16.2 million,
compared to $204.0 million for the year ended September 30, 2002. Net cash provided by financing activities for
the year ended September 30, 2003 was primarily due to proceeds from issuance of common stock under
employee stock option and stock purchase plans, partially offset by principal payments on debt and capital lease
obligations. Net cash provided by financing activities for the year ended September 30, 2002 was primarily due
to the net proceeds from our IPO and the net proceeds of $29.7 million from the sale of our Series F convertible
preferred stock in October 2001.

In connection with the acquisition of Neoteris, we paid $20.0 million in cash and we agreed to pay up to an
additional $30.0 million to the stockholders and option holders of Neoteris upon the achievement of certain
revenue milestones. We expect to make these additional payments, if earned, in the quarter ending June 30, 2005.

In October 2002, we entered into a lease for our corporate headquarters. Rent payments are approximately
$231,000 per month and commenced on February 14, 2003. The lease terminates on May 13, 2008. Under the
terms of the lease, we may lease additional space in the facility at an additional monthly rent of approximately
$32,000. We can exercise this option to lease the additional space at anytime through February 14, 2004. The
lease was secured by a $692,000 standby letter of credit as of September 30, 2003.

We acquired OneSecure, Inc. in September 2002. In connection with the acquisition, we assumed
non-cancelable operating leases for domestic sales offices that were not occupied by OneSecure and that have not
and will not be occupied by us. In addition, we assumed the non-cancelable operating lease for OneSecure’s
headquarters in Sunnyvale, California, which is a duplicate facility. We have recorded a restructuring liability for
the net present value of these leases, net of expected sublease income, for the periods these facilities will be
unoccupied.
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We have entered into several leases for domestic and foreign sales office facilities. The leases expire at
various dates through November 2005. The related cost of the leases is approximately $143,000 per month.

We purchase from contract manufacturers and other inventory suppliers on a purchase order basis and do not
have a long-term supply contract with any of them. At September 30, 2003, we had placed non-cancelable purchase
orders totaling $7.1 million.

A summary of our obligations and commitments as of September 30, 2003 are as follows (in thousands):

Payments Due by Period

Total
Less Than
One Year

One to Three
Years

Four to Five
Years

After Five
Years

Debt and capital lease obligations . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 72 $ 72 $ — $ — $—
Restructuring liabilities, net present value . . . . . . . . . 2,690 648 1,573 469 —
Noncancelable inventory purchase commitments . . . . 7,071 7,071 — — —
Operating leases . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 14,490 4,095 8,666 1,729 —

Total contractual cash obligations . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $24,323 $11,886 $10,239 $2,198 $—

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In January 2003, the FASB issued FIN 46, “Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities, an Interpretation of
ARB No. 51.” FIN 46 requires certain variable interest entities to be consolidated by the primary beneficiary of
the entity if the equity investors in the entity do not have the characteristics of a controlling financial interest or
do not have sufficient equity at risk for the entity to finance its activities without additional subordinated
financial support from other parties. FIN 46 is effective for all new variable interest entities created or acquired
after January 31, 2003. For variable interest entities created or acquired prior to February 1, 2003, the provisions
of FIN 46 must be applied for the first interim or annual period ending after December 15, 2003. We do not
expect the adoption of FIN 46 to have a material impact on our results of operations or financial position.

In April 2003, the FASB issued SFAS No. 149, “Amendment of Statement 133 on Derivative Instruments
and Hedging Activities,” (“SFAS 149”) which amends and clarifies financial accounting and reporting for
derivative instruments, including certain derivative instruments embedded in other contracts and for hedging
activities under SFAS 133. SFAS 149 is effective for contracts entered into or modified after June 30, 2003
except for the provisions that were cleared by the FASB in prior pronouncements. The adoption of SFAS 149 did
not have a material impact on our results of operations or financial position.

In May 2003, the FASB issued SFAS No. 150, “Accounting for Certain Financial Instruments with
Characteristics of both Liabilities and Equity” (“SFAS 150”). This statement establishes standards for how an
issuer classifies and measures in its statement of financial position certain financial instruments with
characteristics of both liabilities and equity. In accordance with the standard, financial instruments that embody
obligations for the issuer are required to be classified as liabilities. This Statement shall be effective for financial
instruments entered into or modified after May 31, 2003 and otherwise shall be effective beginning in our first
quarter of fiscal year 2004. The adoption of SFAS 150 did not have a significant impact on our results of
operations or financial position.
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FACTORS THAT MAY AFFECT OUR BUSINESS AND FUTURE RESULTS OF
OPERATIONS AND FINANCIAL CONDITION

In addition to other information in this report, the following risk factors should be carefully considered in
evaluating us and our business because these factors may have a significant impact on our business, operating
results or financial condition. Actual results could differ materially from those projected in the forward-looking
statements contained in this report as a result of the risk factors discussed below and elsewhere in this report.

Prolonged weakness in the Internet infrastructure, network security and related markets may decrease
our revenues and margins.

The market for our products depends on economic conditions affecting the broader Internet infrastructure,
network security and related markets. Weakness in these markets may cause enterprises and carriers to delay or
cancel security projects, reduce their overall or security-specific information technology budgets or reduce or
cancel orders for our products. In this environment, distributors, value-added resellers and carriers may
experience financial difficulty, cease operations and fail to budget or reduce budgets for the purchase of our
products. This, in turn, may lead to longer sales cycles, delays in purchase decisions, difficulties with payment
and collection and may also result in price pressures, causing us to realize lower revenues, gross margins and
operating margins. In addition, general economic uncertainty caused by potential hostilities involving the United
States, terrorist activities, the decline in specific markets such as the service provider market in the United States
and the general decline in capital spending in the information technology sector make it difficult to predict
changes in the purchase and network requirements of our customers and the markets we serve. We believe that a
prolonged weakness in these markets could cause some businesses to curtail or eliminate capital spending on
information technology. If capital spending in our markets declines, our revenues, gross margins and operating
margins may decline and we may not be able to achieve our financial goals and maintain profitability.

Competition may decrease our revenues, market share and margins.

The market for network security products is highly competitive and we expect competition to intensify in
the future. Competitors may gain market share and introduce new competitive products for the same markets and
customers currently served by our products. These products may have better performance, lower prices and
broader acceptance than our products.

Current and potential competitors in our market include the following, all of which sell worldwide or have a
presence in most of the major geographical markets for their products:

• firewall and VPN software vendors, such as Check Point Software Technologies Ltd. and Symantec
Corporation;

• network equipment manufacturers, such as Cisco Systems, Inc., Lucent Technologies Inc., Nokia
Corporation and Nortel Networks Corporation;

• security appliance suppliers, such as SonicWALL, Inc., WatchGuard Technologies, Inc. and Symantec
Corporation;

• SSL VPN vendors, such as Cisco Systems, Inc., F5 Networks, Inc. and Symantec Corporation;

• intrusion detection system vendors, such as Internet Security Systems, Inc., Cisco Systems, Inc., Network
Associates, Inc. and Enterasys Networks, Inc.;

• low-cost network hardware suppliers with products that include network security functionality; and

• emerging security companies that may position their systems as replacements for our products.

Many of our current or potential competitors have longer operating histories, greater name recognition, larger
customer bases and significantly greater financial, technical, sales, marketing and other resources than we
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do. In addition, some of our competitors currently combine their products with other companies’ networking and
security products to compete with our products. These competitors also often combine their sales and marketing
efforts to compete with our products. This competition may result in reduced prices, lower gross and operating
margins and longer sales cycles for our products. If any of our larger competitors were to commit greater
technical, sales, marketing and other resources to our markets, or reduce prices for their products over a sustained
period of time, our ability to successfully sell our products, increase revenue or meet our or investor expectations
could be adversely affected.

We may not be successful in integrating the operations of Neoteris or any other future acquisitions.

On November 14, 2003 we completed the acquisition of Neoteris, Inc. Achieving the anticipated benefits of
this merger will depend in part upon whether we can integrate the operations, products and technology of
Neoteris with our operations, products and technology in a timely and cost-effective manner. The process of
combining two companies is complex, expensive and time consuming and may cause an interruption of, or loss
of momentum in, the product development and sales activities and operations of both companies. We cannot
assure you that any part or all of the integration will be accomplished on a timely basis, or at all. Assimilating
Neoteris or any other companies we may seek to acquire in the future, involves a number of other risks,
including, but not limited to:

• adverse effects on existing customer relationships, such as cancellation of orders or the loss of key
customers;

• difficulties in integrating or an inability to retain the employees of the acquired company;

• difficulties in integrating the operations of the acquired company, such as information technology
resources, manufacturing processes, sales and marketing organizations and financial and operational data;

• difficulties in integrating the products and technologies of the acquired company into our product
offerings;

• unanticipated costs or the incurrence of unknown liabilities;

• potential incompatibility of business cultures;

• any perceived adverse changes in business focus;

• entering into markets and acquiring technologies in areas in which we have little experience;

• potential dilution to existing stockholders if we have to issue equity or convertible debt securities to pay
for any future acquisitions;

• increased operating expenses;

• additional expenses associated with the amortization of intangible assets and deferred stock
compensation; and

• an inability to maintain uniform standards, controls, procedures and policies.

In addition, the integration of certain operations following any merger will require the time and attention of our
management, which may distract attention from the day-to-day business of the combined company. Failure to
effectively integrate the operations of Neoteris or any other companies we may seek to acquire in the future could
have an adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations.

Our business may suffer due to risks associated with international sales and operations.

Revenues from outside of the Americas were 60.6% of our total revenue for the year ended September 30,
2003, 55.3% of our total revenues for the year ended September 30, 2002 and 46.8% of our total revenues for the
year ended September 30, 2001. We expect revenues from outside of the Americas will continue to represent a
substantial portion of our total revenues for the foreseeable future.
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We may not be able to maintain or increase international market demand or international revenues from our
products. For example, general economic conditions in international markets can fluctuate and downturns in
these markets could have a significant adverse impact on our ability to meet public market expectations and
sustain profitability. Also, as agreements with international distributors expire, we may be unable to renew our
distributor agreements on favorable terms or make alternative arrangements with other distributors. If we are
unable to maintain or increase international market demand and revenues from our products, our revenues and
operating results would be adversely affected.

We intend to continue expanding our existing international operations and to enter new international
markets. This expansion will require significant management attention and financial resources. We currently
have limited experience in marketing and distributing our products internationally and in developing versions of
our products that comply with local standards. In addition, international operations are subject to other inherent
risks, including:

• potential foreign government regulation of our technology or unexpected changes in regulatory
requirements;

• greater difficulty and delays in accounts receivable collection;

• difficulties in and costs of staffing and managing foreign operations;

• reduced protection for intellectual property rights in some countries;

• currency fluctuations; and

• potentially adverse tax consequences.

The unpredictability of our quarterly results may cause the trading price of our common stock to decline.

Our quarterly revenues and operating results have varied in the past and will likely continue to vary in the
future due to a number of factors, many of which are outside of our control. Any of these factors could cause the
price of our common stock to decline. The primary factors that may affect our revenues and operating results
include the following:

• the demand for our products;

• the length of our sales and implementation cycle;

• the timing of recognizing revenues;

• new product introductions by us or our competitors;

• changes in our pricing policies or the pricing policies of our competitors;

• variations in sales channels, product costs or mix of products sold;

• our ability to develop, introduce and ship in a timely manner new products and product enhancements that
meet customer requirements;

• our ability to obtain sufficient supplies of sole or limited source components, including ASICs, and power
supplies, for our products;

• variations in the prices of the components we purchase;

• our ability to attain and maintain production volumes and quality levels for our products at reasonable
prices at our third-party manufacturers;

• our ability to manage our customer base and credit risk and to collect our accounts receivable; and

• the financial strength of our value-added resellers and distributors.

Our operating expenses are largely based on anticipated revenues and a high percentage of our expenses are,
and will continue to be, fixed in the short term. As a result, lower than anticipated revenues for any reason could
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cause significant variations in our operating results from quarter to quarter and, because of our rapidly growing
operating expenses, could result in substantial operating losses.

Due to the factors summarized above, we believe that quarter-to-quarter comparisons of our operating
results are not necessarily a good indication of our future performance. Also, it is likely that, in some future
quarters, our operating results will be below the expectations of public market analysts and investors. In this
event, the price of our common stock would likely decline.

Failure to successfully develop and introduce new products or product enhancements to address market
requirements and evolving standards in the network security industry could cause our revenues to decline
and impact our margins.

The market for network security products is characterized by rapid technological change, frequent new
product introductions, changes in customer requirements and evolving industry standards. We expect to
introduce new products and enhancements to existing products to address current and evolving customer
requirements and general networking trends and vulnerabilities. In addition, we expect to introduce products and
product enhancements to address the needs of customers with varying needs, which may involve different levels
of technological complexity and require different levels of support than we have delivered in the past. For
example, we expect to extend our product offerings to address the needs of new customers and customer
requirements, such as customers in the small and medium enterprise market and customers seeking antivirus
protection in our solutions. Such expansions may lead to increased competition with other larger security solution
providers as well as startup companies. Additionally, some of the new products and enhancements may require
us to develop new hardware architectures and ASICs that involve complex, expensive and time consuming
processes. In developing and introducing our products, we make assumptions about the features, security
standards, performance criteria and support levels that our customers will demand. If our assumptions are wrong,
market acceptance of our products may be below our expectations, our competitors may gain an advantage and
our ability to sell our solutions my be impaired. In addition, if we implement features and enhancements that
increase our costs of production, or if we offer products to markets that desire fewer capabilities and we scale
back our product features and reduce prices accordingly, our gross margins and operating margins may decline.
Likewise, we may not be able to develop new products or product enhancements in a timely manner, or at all.
Failing to develop or introduce new products and product enhancements might cause our existing products to be
less competitive, may adversely affect our ability to sell solutions to address large customer deployments and, as
a consequence, our revenues, gross margins and operating results could be adversely affected.

We also expect to develop products with strategic and technology partners and to incorporate third-party
security capabilities into our products to address the needs of our customers. Such development and integration
efforts are difficult, time consuming and expensive, and there can be no assurance that we will complete them
successfully. In addition, we may not succeed in our efforts to market the product lines and technology acquired
in connection with the acquisition of Neoteris, to combine the technology of OneSecure, Inc. into our own
products, or to enhance OneSecure’s line of IDP appliances, or offer a viable combined hardware or management
product that addresses the needs of our customers. In addition, if competitors introduce products embodying new
technologies, our products could be rendered obsolete, which would have a direct, adverse effect on our market
share and revenues. Any failure of our future products or product enhancements to achieve market acceptance
could cause our revenue to be below our or investor expectations and our revenues, gross margins and operating
results could be adversely affected.

The long sales and implementation cycles for our products may cause revenues and operating results to
vary significantly.

An end customer’s decision to purchase our products often involves a significant commitment of its
resources and a lengthy evaluation and product qualification process. Throughout the sales cycle, we often spend
considerable time educating and providing information to prospective customers regarding the use and benefits
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of our products. Budget constraints and the need for multiple approvals within enterprises, carriers and
government entities may also delay the purchase decision. Failure to obtain the required approval for a particular
project or purchase decision may delay the purchase of our products. Additionally, our security systems and
intrusion detection and prevention products are complex systems designed for the enterprise and service provider
markets. These systems and products require us to maintain a sophisticated sales force, engage in extensive
negotiations and provide high-level engineering support to complete sales. If these systems and products are not
successful with enterprise and service provider customers, our revenue could be below our expectations and our
operating results could be adversely affected.

Even after making the decision to purchase our products, our end customers may not deploy our products
broadly within their networks. The timing of implementation can vary widely and depends on the skill set of the
end customer, the size of the network deployment, the complexity of the end customer’s network environment
and the degree of hardware and software configuration necessary to deploy our products. End customers with
large networks usually expand their networks in large increments on a periodic basis and large deployments and
purchases of our security systems also require a significant outlay of capital from end customers. If our end
customers delay implementation of our products due to these factors, our revenue could be below our
expectations and our operating results could be adversely affected.

Our reliance on third parties to manufacture, assemble, test and fulfill orders for our products could cause
a delay in our ability to fill orders, which might cause us to lose sales.

Flash Electronics, Inc. manufactures, assembles, tests and fulfills orders for the NetScreen-50,
NetScreen-25, NetScreen-204, NetScreen-208, NetScreen-IDP 500, NetScreen-IDP 100 and NetScreen-IDP 10
products at its Fremont, California facility. Solectron Corporation manufactures, assembles, tests and fulfills
orders for the NetScreen-5400, NetScreen-5200, NetScreen-500, NetScreen-SA 5000, NetScreen-SA 3000,
NetScreen-SA 1000 and NetScreen-SM 3000 products at its San Jose, California facility and the NetScreen-5XP
and NetScreen-5XT products at its facility in China. Another third party manufactures, assembles and tests the
NetScreen-5GT at its facility in Taiwan. Solectron Corporation fulfills orders for the NetScreen-5GT at its San
Jose, California facility. We currently do not have a long-term supply contract with any of our contract
manufacturers, and we purchase from them on a purchase order basis. If we should fail to manage our
relationship with these manufacturers effectively, or if they experience delays, disruptions or quality control
problems in their manufacturing and order fulfillment operations, our ability to ship products to our customers
could be delayed.

The absence of dedicated capacity with our contract manufacturers means that, with little or no notice, they
could refuse to continue manufacturing some or all of our products. Qualifying a new contract manufacturer and
commencing volume production is expensive and time-consuming. If we are required or choose to change
contract manufacturers, we could lose revenues and damage our customer relationships.

Our proprietary GigaScreen and GigaScreen-II ASICs, which are key to the functionality of many of our
hardware-based products, are fabricated by foundries operated by Toshiba America Electronic Components, Inc.
We have no long-term contract with Toshiba and purchase our ASICs on a purchase order basis. If Toshiba
materially delays its supply of ASICs to us, or requires us to find an alternate supplier and we are not able to do
so on a timely and reasonable basis, our revenue and operating results would be adversely affected.

Our reliance on third-party manufacturers also exposes us to the following risks outside our control:

• unexpected increases in manufacturing and repair costs;

• interruptions in shipments if one of our manufacturers is unable to complete production;

• inability to control quality of finished products;

• inability to control delivery schedules;
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• unpredictability of manufacturing yields;

• financial strength required of these manufacturers to meet our procurement and manufacturing needs; and

• potential lack of adequate capacity to provide all or a part of the services we require.

We rely on single or limited sources for several key components.

We currently purchase several key components, including semiconductors, from single or limited sources.
We carry very little inventory of some of our products and product components, and we rely on our suppliers to
deliver necessary components to our contract manufacturers in a timely manner based on the forecasts we
provide. Some of the semiconductors we require are very complex, and we may not be able to develop an
alternate source in a timely manner, which could hurt our ability to deliver our products to our customers. We
also purchase power supplies from a single source and purchase other custom components from other sole or
limited sources. If we are unable to buy these components on a timely basis, we will not be able to deliver
products to our customers and our revenue and operating results would be adversely affected.

At various times, some of the key components for our products, such as flash memory, have been in short
supply. Delays in receiving components would harm our ability to deliver our products on a timely basis. In
addition, because we rely on purchase orders rather than long-term contracts with our suppliers, we cannot
predict with certainty our ability to procure components in the longer term. If we receive a smaller allocation of
components than is necessary to manufacture products in quantities sufficient to meet customer demand,
customers could choose to purchase competing products.

If we fail to develop or maintain relationships with value-added resellers or distribution partners, or if our
value-added resellers or distribution partners are not successful in their sales efforts, sales of our products
may decrease and our operating results would suffer.

We derived 92.1% of our total revenues from value-added resellers and distributors in the year ended
September 30, 2003. We expect our revenues to continue to depend in large part on the performance of these
third-party distributors and resellers. In addition, our value-added resellers and distributors may be unsuccessful
in selling our products and services, may sell products and services that are competitive with ours, may devote
more resources to competitive products and may cease selling our products and services altogether. The loss of or
reduction in sales to our value-added resellers or distributors could materially reduce our revenues. In addition,
we believe part of our future success will depend upon establishing successful relationships with a variety of
additional resellers in other countries. If we fail to develop and maintain additional relationships with these
distribution partners, or if these partners are not successful in their sales efforts, sales of our products may
decrease and our operating results would suffer.

A breach of network security could harm public perception of our products, which could cause us to lose
revenues.

If an actual or perceived breach of network security occurs in one of our end customer’s network systems,
regardless of whether the breach is attributable to our products, the market perception of the effectiveness of our
products could be harmed. This could cause us to lose current and potential end customers or cause us to lose
current and potential value-added resellers and distributors. Because the techniques used by computer hackers to
access or sabotage networks change frequently and generally are not recognized until launched against a target,
we may be unable to anticipate these techniques.

Undetected product errors or defects could result in loss of revenues, delayed market acceptance and
claims against us.

We offer a warranty on all of our products, allowing the end customer to have any defective unit repaired, or
to receive a replacement product for it during the warranty period. Our products may contain undetected errors or

34



defects. If there is a broad product failure across our customer base, we may decide to replace all affected
products or we may decide to refund the purchase price for defective units. Such defects and actions may
adversely affect our ability to record revenue for units. Some errors are discovered only after a product has been
installed and used by end customers. Any errors discovered after commercial release could result in loss of
revenues and claims against us.

If we are unable to fix errors or other problems that later are identified after full deployment, in addition to
the consequence described above, we could experience:

• failure to achieve market acceptance;

• loss of customers;

• loss of or delay in revenues and loss of market share;

• diversion of development resources;

• increased service and warranty costs;

• legal actions by our customers; and

• increased insurance costs.

If our products do not interoperate with our end customers’ networks, installations would be delayed or
cancelled, which could significantly reduce our revenues.

Our products are designed to interface with our end customers’ existing networks, each of which has
different specifications and utilizes multiple protocol standards. Many of our end customers’ networks contain
multiple generations of products that have been added over time as these networks have grown and evolved. Our
products must interoperate with all of the products within these networks as well as with future products that
might be added to these networks in order to meet our end customers’ requirements. If we find errors in the
existing software used in our end customers’ networks, we may elect to modify our software to fix or overcome
these errors so that our products will interoperate and scale with their existing software and hardware. If our
products do not interoperate with those within our end customers’ networks, customer installations could be
delayed or orders for our products could be cancelled, which could significantly reduce our revenues.

If we fail to predict our manufacturing requirements accurately, we could incur additional costs or
experience manufacturing delays, which could reduce our gross margins or cause us to lose sales.

Because we currently do not have long-term supply contracts with our contract manufacturers, they are not
obligated to supply products to us for any specific period, in any specific quantity or at any certain price, except
as may be provided in a particular purchase order. We provide forecasts of our demand to our contract
manufacturers up to six months prior to scheduled delivery of products to our customers. If we overestimate our
requirements, our contract manufacturers may have excess inventory, which would increase our costs. If we
underestimate our requirements, our contract manufacturers may have an inadequate component inventory,
which could interrupt manufacturing of our products and result in delays in shipments and revenues. In addition,
lead times for materials and components that we order vary significantly and depend on factors such as the
specific supplier, contract terms and demand for each component at a given time. We may also experience
shortages of components from time to time, which also could delay the manufacturing of our products.

We may experience losses and may not maintain profitability.

We achieved profitability on a GAAP basis for the first time in the three months ended December 31, 2002.
Prior to the quarter ended December 31, 2002, we had incurred significant losses since our inception in October
1997. We may incur losses in the future. As of September 30, 2003, we had an accumulated deficit of $81.0
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million. We had net income of $51.5 million for the year ended September 30, 2003, net losses applicable to
common stockholders of $41.1 million for the year ended September 30, 2002 and $34.2 million for the year
ended September 30, 2001. We expect to continue to incur increasing sales and marketing, research and
development and general and administrative expenses. As a result, we will need to continue generating higher
revenues to maintain profitability. Revenue growth depends on many factors, including those described
elsewhere in these “Factors That May Affect Our Business and Future Results of Operations and Financial
Condition.” Our revenues may not grow, our gross margins and operating margins may decline and we may not
maintain profitability.

We depend on our key personnel to manage our business effectively in a rapidly changing market, and if
we are unable to retain key personnel, our ability to execute our business strategy would be impaired.

Our future success depends upon the continued services of our executive officers and other key engineering,
sales, marketing and support personnel. None of our officers or key employees are bound by an employment
agreement for any specific term, and no one is constrained from terminating his or her employment relationship
with us at any time. The loss of the services of one or more of our key employees could make it difficult to meet
key business objectives, such as timely and effective product introductions, and could harm our business.

Our ability to sell our products and implement our business plan successfully in a volatile and growing
market requires effective management, information technology and financial systems, and a system of internal
processes and controls. Growth in future operations may cause strain on our systems, processes and controls. To
meet these challenges, we will need to improve our management and information technology systems as well as
our internal controls for financial reporting. We will also need to scale these systems and controls to meet the
requirements of our growth in international markets and continue to expand, train and manage our workforce
worldwide. If we do not meet these challenges, we may be unable to expand our business or to meet competitive
challenges and it will be more difficult to manage our operations.

We are exposed to fluctuations in currency exchange rates that could negatively impact our results of
operations.

Our international sales are currently denominated in U.S. dollars. As a result, an increase in the value of the
U.S. dollar relative to foreign currencies could make our products less price competitive in international markets,
affect our customers’ ability to pay amounts due and negatively impact our revenues from international
operations. Additionally, in the future we may elect to invoice some of our international customers in local
currency, which could subject our revenues related to such customers to fluctuations in exchange rates between
the U.S. dollar and the local currency.

We might have to defend lawsuits or pay damages in connection with any alleged or actual failure of our
products and services.

Because our products and services provide and monitor network security and may protect valuable
information, we could face claims for product liability, tort or breach of warranty. Anyone who circumvents our
security measures could misappropriate the confidential information or other property of end customers using our
products, or interrupt their operations. If that happens, affected end customers or others may sue us. In addition,
we may face liability for breaches caused by faulty installation of our products by our service and support
organizations. Provisions in our contracts relating to warranty disclaimers and liability limitations may be
unenforceable. Some courts, for example, have found contractual limitations of liability in standard computer and
software contracts to be unenforceable in some circumstances. Defending a lawsuit, regardless of its merit, could
be costly and could divert management attention. Our business liability insurance coverage may be inadequate or
future coverage may be unavailable on acceptable terms or at all.

36



If we fail to protect our intellectual property rights, end customers or potential competitors might be able
to use our technologies to develop their own solutions, which could weaken our competitive position or
reduce our revenues.

We rely on a combination of patent, copyright, trademark and trade secret laws and restrictions on
disclosure to protect our intellectual property rights. As of December 15, 2003, we had twenty-three patent
applications pending in the United States relating to our products, three of which have been extended to other
countries. Our pending patent applications may not result in the issuance of any patents. Even if we obtain such
patents, that will not guarantee that our patent rights will be valuable, create a competitive barrier or will be free
from infringement. Furthermore, if any patent is issued, it might be invalidated or circumvented or otherwise fail
to provide us any meaningful protection. We also enter into confidentiality agreements with our employees,
consultants and corporate partners, and control the use, access to and distribution of our software, documentation
and other proprietary information. Unauthorized parties may attempt to copy or otherwise obtain and use our
products or technology. Monitoring unauthorized use of our products is difficult, and the steps we have taken
may not prevent unauthorized use of our technology, particularly in foreign countries where the laws may not
protect our proprietary rights as fully as in the United States.

We could become subject to litigation regarding intellectual property rights that could be costly and result
in the loss of significant rights.

In recent years, there has been significant litigation in the United States involving patents and other
intellectual property rights. We may become a party to litigation in the future to protect our intellectual property
or as a result of an alleged infringement of another party’s intellectual property. Claims for alleged infringement
and any resulting lawsuit, if successful, could subject us to significant liability for damages and invalidation of
our proprietary rights. These lawsuits, regardless of their success, would likely be time-consuming and expensive
to resolve and would divert management time and attention. Any potential intellectual property litigation could
also force us to do one or more of the following:

• stop or delay selling, incorporating or using products that use the challenged intellectual property;

• obtain from the owner of the infringed intellectual property right a license to sell or use the relevant
technology, which license may not be available on reasonable terms or at all; or

• redesign the products that use that technology.

If we are forced to take any of these actions, our business might be seriously harmed. Our insurance may not
cover potential claims of this type or may not be adequate to indemnify us for all liability that could be imposed.

The inability to obtain any third-party license required to develop new products and product
enhancements or the failure to maintain third party licenses used in current product offerings could
seriously harm our business, financial condition and results of operations.

From time to time, we may be required to license technology from third parties to develop new products or
product enhancements. We also currently license third party technology in our product offerings, such as
antivirus technology incorporated in our NetScreen-5GT platform. Third-party licenses may not be available to
us on commercially reasonable terms or at all. The inability to obtain any third-party license required to develop
new products or product enhancements or the failure to maintain third party licenses used in current product
offerings could require us to obtain substitute technology of lower quality or performance standards or at greater
cost, which could seriously harm our business, financial condition and results of operations.

We will record substantial expenses related to our issuance of stock options that will have a material
negative impact on our results of operations.

We have granted stock options under our stock option plans since November 1997. We are required to
recognize, as a reduction of stockholders’ equity, deferred stock compensation expense equal to the difference

37



between the deemed fair market value of our common stock for financial reporting purposes and the exercise
price of these options at the date of grant. This expense is amortized over the vesting period of the applicable
options, generally four years, using the straight-line vesting method. At September 30, 2003, $16.0 million of
deferred stock compensation related to employee stock options remained unamortized. In addition, we expect to
record substantial deferred stock compensation in connection with the November 2003 acquisition of Neoteris,
Inc. The resulting amortization expense will have a material negative impact on our results of operations in future
periods through the quarter ending December 31, 2007.

Governmental regulations affecting the import or export of products could negatively affect our revenues.

Governmental regulation of imports or exports or failure to obtain required export approval of our
encryption technologies could harm our international and domestic sales. The United States and various foreign
governments have imposed controls, export license requirements and restrictions on the import or export of some
technologies, especially encryption technology. In addition, from time to time, governmental agencies have
proposed additional regulation of encryption technology, such as requiring the escrow and governmental
recovery of private encryption keys.

In particular, in light of recent terrorist activity, governments could enact additional regulation or
restrictions on the use, import or export of encryption technology. Additional regulation of encryption technology
could delay or prevent the acceptance and use of encryption products and public networks for secure
communications. This might decrease demand for our products and services. In addition, some foreign
competitors are subject to less stringent controls on exporting their encryption technologies. As a result, they may
be able to compete more effectively than we can in the domestic and international network security market.

Earthquakes, other natural disasters and power shortages may damage our facilities or the facilities of
third parties on which we depend.

Our corporate headquarters and some of our third-party manufacturers are located near major earthquake
faults that have experienced earthquakes in the past. An earthquake or other natural disaster near our
headquarters or near one or more of the facilities of third parties upon which we rely could disrupt our operations
or the operations of those parties. In addition, critical systems and services are provided by IBM in Toronto,
Canada. A natural disaster or other disruption of operations at IBM’s Toronto facilities could harm our ability to
transact and report business. None of these disruptions would be covered by insurance, and the supply of our
products could be limited, our business could be hampered and our financial condition and results of operations
could be harmed.

The price of our common stock is likely to be volatile.

The market prices of the securities of technology-related companies have been extremely volatile. Thus, the
market price of our common stock is likely to be subject to wide fluctuations. If our revenues do not grow or
grow slower than investors anticipate, if operating or capital expenditures exceed our expectations and cannot be
reduced appropriately, if our gross margin or operating margin declines or declines faster than investors
anticipate, or if some other event adversely affects us, the market price of our common stock could decline. In
addition, if the market for technology-related stocks or the stock market in general experiences a loss in investor
confidence or otherwise fails, the market price of our common stock could decline for reasons unrelated to our
business, results of operations and financial condition. The market price of our stock also might decline in
reaction to events that affect other companies in our industry even if these events do not directly affect us.
General political or economic conditions, such as an outbreak of war, a recession or interest rate or currency rate
fluctuations, could also cause the market price of our common stock to decline. Our common stock has
experienced, and is likely to continue to experience, these fluctuations in price, regardless of our performance.
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Management could invest or spend our cash or cash equivalents and investments in ways that might not
enhance our results of operations or market share.

We have made no specific allocations of our cash or cash equivalents and investments. Consequently,
management will retain a significant amount of discretion over the application of our cash or cash equivalents
and investments and could spend the proceeds in ways that do not improve our operating results or increase our
market share. In addition, these proceeds may not be invested to yield a favorable rate of return.

Provisions in our charter documents might deter a company from acquiring us, which could inhibit a
stockholder from receiving an acquisition premium for their shares.

We have adopted a classified board of directors. Our board is divided into three classes that serve staggered
three-year terms. Only one class of directors will be elected each year, while the directors in the other classes will
continue on our board for the remainder of their terms. This classification of our board could make it more
difficult for a third party to acquire, or could discourage a third party from acquiring, control of NetScreen since
it would make it more difficult and time-consuming to replace our then current directors. In addition, our
stockholders are unable to call special meetings of stockholders, to act by written consent, to remove any director
or the entire board of directors without a supermajority vote or to fill any vacancy on our board of directors. Our
stockholders must also meet advance notice requirements for stockholder proposals. Our board may also issue
preferred stock without any vote or further action by the stockholders. These provisions and other provisions
under Delaware law could make it more difficult for a third party to acquire us, even if doing so would benefit
our stockholders.

Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk.

We develop products in the United States and sell them worldwide. As a result, our financial results could
be affected by factors such as changes in foreign currency exchange rates or weak economic conditions in foreign
markets. Since our sales are currently priced in U.S. dollars, a strengthening of the dollar could make our
products less competitive in foreign markets and our accounts receivable more difficult to collect.

As of September 30, 2003, our investment portfolio consisted of money market funds, corporate-backed
debt obligations, municipal bonds and U.S. government discount notes and earned interest at an average rate of
1.4%. We place investments with high quality issuers and limit the amount of credit exposure to any one issuer.
These securities are subject to interest rate risks. Based on our portfolio content and our ability to hold
investments to maturity, we believe that, a hypothetical 10% increase or decrease in current interest rates would
not materially affect our interest income, although there can be no assurance of this.

Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data.

Financial Statements

Our financial statements required by this item are set forth as a separate section of this report. See
Item 15(a)(1) for a listing of financial statements provided in the section titled “Financial Statements.”
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Supplementary Data

The following tables set forth unaudited quarterly supplementary data for each of the years in the two-year
period ended September 30, 2003 (in thousands, except per share amounts):

Quarter Ended

December 31 March 31 June 30 September 30

Fiscal 2003
Total revenues . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 51,070 $58,342 $64,340 $71,590
Gross margin . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 39,370 $44,481 $49,435 $55,936
Income from operations . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 5,235 $ 8,509 $10,684 $12,766
Net income(1) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 3,212 $ 5,891 $35,270 $ 7,147
Basic net income per share applicable to common
stockholders . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 0.04 $ 0.08 $ 0.44 $ 0.09

Diluted net income per share applicable to common
stockholders . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 0.04 $ 0.07 $ 0.41 $ 0.08

Quarter Ended

December 31 March 31 June 30 September 30

Fiscal 2002
Total revenues . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 28,973 $32,037 $36,411 $41,061
Gross margin . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 20,481 $23,508 $26,990 $30,902
Income (loss) from operations . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ (5,740) $ (3,910) $ (2,140) $ 116
Net loss . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ (5,710) $ (3,294) $ (2,442) $ (925)
Deemed dividend on Series E and F redeemable convertible
preferred stock . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $(28,743) $ — $ — $ —

Net loss applicable to common stockholders . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $(34,453) $ (3,294) $ (2,442) $ (925)
Basic and diluted net loss per share applicable to common
stockholders . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ (1.25) $ (0.05) $ (0.03) $ (0.01)

(1) During the year ended September 30, 2003, we reversed $29.6 million of valuation allowance for deferred
taxes.

Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure.

Not applicable.

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures.

Evaluation of disclosure controls and procedures

We carried out an evaluation, under the supervision and with the participation of our management, including
the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, of the effectiveness of the design and operation of our
disclosure controls and procedures pursuant to Rule 13a-14 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (the
“Exchange Act”). Based upon that evaluation, the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer concluded
that as of September 30, 2003, the end of the period covered by this report, our disclosure controls and
procedures were effective at the reasonable assurance level in timely alerting them to material information
relating to NetScreen (including its consolidated subsidiaries) required to be included in our Exchange Act
filings.

Changes in internal control over financial reporting

During the quarter ended September 30, 2003, there were no significant changes in our internal control over
financial reporting that materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over
financial reporting.
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Limitations on effectiveness of controls and procedures

Our management, including our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, does not expect that
our disclosure controls and procedures or our internal controls will prevent all error and all fraud. A control
system, no matter how well conceived and operated, can provide only reasonable, not absolute, assurance that the
objectives of the control system are met. Further, the design of a control system must reflect the fact that there
are resource constraints and the benefits of controls must be considered relative to their costs. Because of the
inherent limitations in all control systems, no evaluation of controls can provide absolute assurance that all
control issues and instances of fraud, if any, within NetScreen have been detected. These inherent limitations
include, but are not limited to, the realities that judgments in decision-making can be faulty and that breakdowns
can occur because of simple error or mistake. Additionally, controls can be circumvented by the individual acts
of some persons, by collusion of two or more people, or by management override of the control. The design of
any system of controls also is based in part upon certain assumptions about the likelihood of future events and
there can be no assurance that any design will succeed in achieving its stated goals under all potential future
conditions; over time, control may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. Because of the inherent limitations in a
cost-effective control system, misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected.

PART III

Item 10. Directors and Executive Officers of the Registrant.

Information relating to our executive officers and directors will be presented under the caption “Executive
Officers and Directors” in our definitive proxy statement in connection with our 2004 Annual Meeting of
Stockholders to be held in February 2004. That information is incorporated into this report by reference.

Information concerning compliance with Section 16(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 will be
presented under the caption “Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance” in our definitive proxy
statement in connection with our 2004 Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be held in February 2004. That
information is incorporated into this report by reference.

We have adopted a code of ethics that applies to our principal executive officer and senior members of our
finance department, including the principal financial officer and principal accounting officer. This code of ethics
is posted on our Website. The Internet address for our Website is http://www.netscreen.com and the code of
ethics may be found as follows:

1. From our main Web page, first drag the cursor over “Company.”

2. Next, click on “Corporate Governance.”

3. Finally, click on “Code of Ethics for Chief Executive Officer and Senior Financial Personnel.”

We intend to satisfy the disclosure requirement under Item 10 of Form 8-K regarding any amendment to, or
waiver from, a provision of this code of ethics by posting such information on our website, at the address and
location specified above.

Item 11. Executive Compensation.

Information relating to executive compensation will be presented under the caption “Executive
Compensation” in our definitive proxy statement. That information is incorporated into this report by reference.
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Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder
Matters.

Information relating to the security ownership of our common stock by our management and other
beneficial owners will be presented under the caption “Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and
Management” in our definitive proxy statement. That information is incorporated into this report by reference.

Information relating to securities authorized for issuance under equity compensation plans will be presented
under the caption “Securities Authorized for Issuance Under Equity Compensation Plans” in our definitive proxy
statement. That information is incorporated into this report by reference.

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions.

Information relating to certain relationships of our directors and executive officers and related transactions
will be presented under the caption “Certain Relationships and Related Transactions” in our definitive proxy
statement. That information is incorporated into this report by reference.

Item 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Services.

The information required by this item will be included under the captions “Proposal No. 2: Ratification of
Independent Auditors–Principal Accountant Fees and Services” in our definitive proxy statement. That
information is incorporated into this report by reference.

42



PART IV

Item 15. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules, and Reports on Form 8-K.

(a) Documents filed as part of this report:

1. Financial Statements
Selected Consolidated Financial Data . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 17
Index to Consolidated Financial Statements . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 48
Report of Ernst & Young LLP, Independent Auditors . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 49
Consolidated Balance Sheets as of September 30, 2003 and 2002 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 50
Consolidated Statements of Operations for the years ended September 30, 2003,
2002 and 2001 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 51

Consolidated Statements of Redeemable Convertible Preferred Stock and
Stockholders’ Equity (Net Capital Deficiency) for the years ended September 30,
2003, 2002 and 2001 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 52

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended September 30, 2003,
2002 and 2001 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 54

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 56

2. Schedule

Schedule II—Valuation and Qualifying Accounts for the years ended September 30,
2003, 2002 and 2001 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 76

Schedules other than that listed above have been omitted since they are either not
required, not applicable, or because the information required is included in the
consolidated financial statements or the notes thereto.

3. Exhibits

The following exhibits are filed as a part of this report:

Exhibit
Number Exhibit Description

Incorporated by Reference

Form File No.
Date of

First Filing
Exhibit
Number

Filed
Herewith

2.01 Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated August 22,
2002, among the Registrant, Tango Acquisition
Corp. and OneSecure, Inc. 8-K 000-33387 10/03/02 2.01

2.02 Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated October 3,
2003, among the Registrant, Neon Acquisition
Corp. and Neoteris, Inc. 8-K 000-33387 11/26/03 2.01

3.01 Registrant’s Form of Restated Certificate of
Incorporation. S-1 333-71048 10/05/01 3.02

3.02 Registrant’s Restated Bylaws, effective
December 17, 2001. 10-Q 000-33387 05/15/02 3.01

4.01 Fifth Amended and Restated Investors’ Rights
Agreement dated October 3, 2001. S-1 333-71048 10/05/01 4.01

4.02 Specimen Stock Certificate representing shares of
Registrant’s Common Stock. S-1/A 333-71048 11/23/01 4.02

10.01 Registrant’s 1997 Equity Incentive Plan, as
amended August 10, 2001, and form of stock
option agreement. (1) S-1 333-71048 10/05/01 10.02
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Exhibit
Number Exhibit Description

Incorporated by Reference

Form File No.
Date of

First Filing
Exhibit
Number

Filed
Herewith

10.02 Registrant’s 2001 Equity Incentive Plan, and
form of stock option agreement. (1) S-1/A 333-71048 12/10/01 10.03

10.03 Registrant’s 2001 Employee Stock Purchase
Plan. (1) S-1/A 333-71048 12/10/01 10.04

10.04 Registrant’s 1997 Equity Incentive Plan form of
stock option agreement for executive officers.
(1) S-1 333-71048 10/05/01 10.05

10.05 OneSecure, Inc. 2000 Stock Option/Stock
Issuance Plan, and forms of stock option
agreements. (1) S-8 333-100088 09/25/02 4.01

10.06 Neoteris, Inc. 2001 Equity Incentive Plan, and
forms of stock option agreements. (1) S-8 333-110719 11/24/03 4.01

10.07 Stock Option Agreement by and between
OneSecure, Inc. and Nir Zuk dated as of January
24, 2001. (1) 8-K 000-33387 10/03/02 99.06

10.08 Stock Option Agreement by and between
OneSecure, Inc. and Nir Zuk dated as of July 5,
2001. (1) 8-K 000-33387 10/03/02 99.07

10.09 Stock Option and Vesting Waiver Agreement by
and between Nir Zuk and the Registrant dated
August 22, 2002. (1) 8-K 000-33387 10/03/02 99.08

10.10 Restricted Common Stock Purchase Agreement
by and between OneSecure, Inc. and Nir Zuk
dated as of February 18, 2000. 8-K 000-33387 10/03/02 99.04

10.11 Registrant’s Form of Offer Letter for executive
officers. (1) S-1 333-71048 10/05/01 10.06

10.12 Offer Letter to Nir Zuk dated August 22, 2002.
(1)(2) 8-K 000-33387 10/03/02 99.02

10.13 Form of Noncompetition Agreement by and
between the Registrant and Nir Zuk dated
August 22, 2002. (1) 8-K 000-33387 10/03/02 99.10

10.14 Amended and Restated Employment Agreement
by and between DanaStreet Internet, Inc., a
Delaware corporation and Krishna Kolluri dated
April 19, 2001. (1) — — — — X

10.15 Amendment and Assumption Agreement by and
between Krishna Kolluri and the Registrant
dated October 3, 2003 (1) — — — — X

10.16 Vesting Waiver Agreement by and between
Krishna Kolluri and the Registrant dated
October 3, 2003. (1) — — — — X

10.17 Noncompetition Agreement by and between the
Registrant and Krishna Kolluri dated October 3,
2003. (1) — — — — X
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Exhibit
Number Exhibit Description

Incorporated by Reference

Form File No.
Date of

First Filing
Exhibit
Number

Filed
Herewith

10.18 Form of Indemnity Agreement to be entered into
by and between the Registrant and each executive
officer and director. (1) S-1 333-71048 10/05/01 10.07

10.19 Form of Promissory Notes from executive officers
to the Registrant made in connection with exercise
of options. (1) S-1 333-71048 10/05/01 10.08

10.20 Manufacturing Agreement by and between Flash
Electronics, Inc. and the Registrant dated January
3, 2002. (2) 10-Q 000-33387 02/14/02 10.01

10.21 Software and License Agreement by and between
Information Resource Engineering, Inc. (now
SafeNet, Inc.) and the Registrant dated June 30,
2000. S-1 333-71048 10/05/01 10.12

10.22 Lease Agreement by and between Ariba, Inc. and
the Registrant dated October 18, 2002. 10-K 000-33387 12/30/02 10.22

10.23 Sublease Agreement by and between Philips
Electronics North America Corporation and the
Registrant dated September 29, 2000. S-1 333-71048 10/05/01 10.13

10.24 Purchase/Service Agreement by and between
Avaya, Inc. and the Registrant dated
November 21, 2000. S-1 333-71048 10/05/01 10.14

10.25 Manufacturing Agreement by and between A-Plus
Manufacturing Corporation (now Solectron
Corporation) and the Registrant dated December
15, 2000. (1) S-1 333-71048 10/05/01 10.15

10.26 Loan and Security Agreement by and between
GATX Ventures, Inc. and the Registrant dated
April 13, 2001. S-1 333-71048 10/05/01 10.16

10.27 Amendment #1 to Software License Agreement by
and between Information Resource Engineering,
Inc. (now SafeNet, Inc.) and the Registrant dated
June 22, 2001. S-1 333-71048 10/05/01 10.17

10.28 Amendment #2 to Software License Agreement by
and between SafeNet, Inc. and the Registrant
dated December 26, 2001. (2) 10-K 000-33387 12/30/02 10.28

10.29 International Customer Agreement by and
between IBM Global Services and the Registrant
dated July 25, 2001. S-1 333-71048 10/05/01 10.18

23.01 Consent of Ernst & Young LLP, Independent
Auditors. — — — — X

31.01 Certification of Chief Executive Officer Pursuant
to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002. — — — — X
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Exhibit
Number Exhibit Description

Incorporated by Reference

Form File No.
Date of

First Filing
Exhibit
Number

Filed
Herewith

31.02 Certification of Chief Financial Officer Pursuant to
Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002. — — — — X

32.01 Certification of Chief Executive Officer Pursuant to
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002. — — — — X

32.02 Certification of Chief Financial Officer Pursuant to
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002. — — — — X

(1) Management contract or compensatory plan or arrangement.
(2) Confidential treatment has been granted with respect to certain portions of this agreement. Such portions

were omitted from the respective filing and were filed separately with the Securities and Exchange
Commission.

(b) Reports on Form 8-K

On July 23, 2003, we filed a report on Form 8-K that furnished (not filed) under Item 12 the press release
entitled “NetScreen Technologies, Inc. Reports Record Fiscal Third Quarter Financial Results” relating to our
results for the quarter ended June 30, 2003.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant
has duly caused this Annual Report on Form 10-K to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly
authorized, in the City of Sunnyvale, State of California, on this 24th day of December, 2003.

NETSCREEN TECHNOLOGIES, INC.

By: /s/ ROBERT D. THOMAS

Robert D. Thomas
President, Chief Executive Officer and Director

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this Annual Report on Form 10-K has
been signed by the following persons on behalf of the Registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

Name Title Date

Principal Executive Officer:

/s/ ROBERT D. THOMAS

Robert D. Thomas

President, Chief Executive Officer and
Director

December 24, 2003

Principal Financial Officer and Principal
Accounting Officer:

/s/ REMO E. CANESSA

Remo E. Canessa

Chief Financial Officer and Corporate
Secretary

December 24, 2003

Additional Directors:

/s/ FENG DENG

Feng Deng

Chief Strategy Officer and Director December 24, 2003

/s/ ALAN L. EARHART
Alan L. Earhart

Director December 24, 2003

/s/ MICHAEL L. GOGUEN

Michael L. Goguen

Director December 24, 2003

/s/ KATHERINE M. JEN
Katherine M. Jen

Director December 24, 2003

/s/ FRANK J. MARSHALL

Frank J. Marshall

Director December 24, 2003

/s/ THOMAS F. MENDOZA

Thomas F. Mendoza

Director December 24, 2003

/s/ VICTOR E. PARKER, JR.
Victor E. Parker, Jr.

Director December 24, 2003
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REPORT OF ERNST & YOUNG LLP, INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
NetScreen Technologies, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of NetScreen Technologies, Inc. as of
September 30, 2003 and 2002, and the related consolidated statements of operations, redeemable convertible
preferred stock and stockholders’ equity (net capital deficiency), and cash flows for each of the three years in the
period ended September 30, 2003. Our audits also included the financial statement schedule listed in the Index at
Item 15(a). These financial statements and schedule are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements and schedule based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States.
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
consolidated financial position of NetScreen Technologies, Inc. at September 30, 2003 and 2002, and the
consolidated results of its operations and its cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended
September 30, 2003, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States. Also, in
our opinion, the related financial statement schedule, when considered in relation to the basic financial
statements taken as a whole, presents fairly in all material respects the information set forth therein.

/S/ ERNST & YOUNG LLP

San Jose, California
October 23, 2003,

except for Note 16, as to
which the date is
November 14, 2003
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NETSCREEN TECHNOLOGIES, INC.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

(in thousands, except share and per share amounts)

September 30,

2003 2002

Assets
Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 53,914 $ 11,153
Short-term investments . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 286,738 238,711
Restricted cash . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 38 1,611
Accounts receivable, net of allowances for doubtful accounts and sales returns of $9,777 and
$7,784 at September 30, 2003 and 2002 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 35,874 18,046

Refundable income taxes . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 943 —
Inventories . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2,501 2,249
Deferred income taxes . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 28,368 —
Other current assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 6,613 5,231

Total current assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 414,989 277,001
Property and equipment . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 10,667 6,264
Restricted cash . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 823 —
Deferred income taxes . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 5,640 —
Intangible assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 4,781 5,759
Goodwill . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 54,271 56,807
Other assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 552 853

Total assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $491,723 $ 346,684

Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity
Current liabilities:

Accounts payable . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 8,230 $ 5,027
Accrued expenses . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 17,204 11,452
Accrued compensation . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 12,234 6,909
Accrued income taxes . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . — 1,865
Deferred revenue . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 54,364 26,150
Current portion of restructuring liabilities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 648 541
Current portion of debt and capital lease obligations . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 72 1,761

Total current liabilities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 92,752 53,705
Restructuring liabilities, less current portion . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2,042 2,577
Long-term portion of debt and capital lease obligations . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . — 1,513

Total liabilities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 94,794 57,795

Commitments and contingencies

Stockholders’ equity:
Preferred stock, $0.001 par value:
Authorized shares—10,000,000 at September 30, 2003 and 2002
Issued and outstanding shares: none at September 30, 2003 and 2002 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . — —

Common stock, $0.001 par value:
Authorized shares—500,000,000 at September 30, 2003 and 2002
Issued and outstanding shares—81,987,529 and 77,893,007 at September 30, 2003 and 2002 . . . . 82 78

Additional paid-in capital . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 493,668 464,524
Accumulated deficit . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (81,030) (132,550)
Accumulated other comprehensive gain . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 234 501
Deferred stock compensation . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (15,977) (42,162)
Stockholders’ notes receivable . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (48) (1,502)

Total stockholders’ equity . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 396,929 288,889

Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $491,723 $ 346,684

See accompanying notes.

50



NETSCREEN TECHNOLOGIES, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

(in thousands, except per share amounts)

Year Ended September 30,

2003 2002 2001

Revenues:
Product . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $200,352 $113,943 $ 71,197
Maintenance and service . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 44,990 24,539 14,366

Total revenues . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 245,342 138,482 85,563

Cost of revenues:
Product (1) (2) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 43,437 28,729 22,128
Maintenance and service (1) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 12,683 7,872 3,668

Total cost of revenues . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 56,120 36,601 25,796

Gross margin . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 189,222 101,881 59,767

Operating expenses:
Research and development (1) (2) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 43,944 32,845 25,595
Sales and marketing (1) (2) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 88,911 63,914 54,784
General and administrative (1) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 19,173 16,796 11,611

Total operating expenses . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 152,028 113,555 91,990

Income (loss) from operations . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 37,194 (11,674) (32,223)
Interest and other income, net . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 4,185 3,361 1,086

Income (loss) before income taxes . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 41,379 (8,313) (31,137)
Benefit (provision) for income taxes . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 10,141 (4,058) (168)

Net income (loss) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 51,520 (12,371) (31,305)
Deemed dividend on Series E and Series F redeemable convertible preferred
stock . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . — (28,743) (2,923)

Net income (loss) applicable to common stockholders . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 51,520 $ (41,114) $(34,228)

Basic net income (loss) per share applicable to common stockholders . . . . . . . $ 0.65 $ (0.68) $ (2.05)

Shares used in computing basic net income (loss) per share applicable to
common stockholders . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 79,110 60,564 16,696

Diluted net income (loss) per share applicable to common stockholders . . . . . $ 0.61 $ (0.68) $ (2.05)

Shares used in computing diluted net income (loss) per share applicable to
common stockholders . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 84,694 60,564 16,696

(1) Includes stock-based compensation of the following:
Cost of product revenues . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 1,564 $ 1,644 $ 1,405
Cost of maintenance and service revenues . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1,099 1,017 1,210
Research and development . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 7,633 7,665 6,376
Sales and marketing . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 10,136 11,116 9,348
General and administrative . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2,783 2,817 704

Total stock-based compensation . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 23,215 $ 24,259 $ 19,043

(2) Includes amortization of intangible assets of the following:
Cost of product revenues . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 744 $ 31
Research and development . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 92 4
Sales and marketing . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 142 6

Total amortization of intangible assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 978 $ 41

See accompanying notes.
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NETSCREEN TECHNOLOGIES, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(in thousands)
Year Ended September 30,

2003 2002 2001

Operating activities
Net income (loss) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 51,520 $ (12,371) $(31,305)
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to net cash provided by (used in)
operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 5,587 3,402 2,172
Net loss on disposal of property and equipment . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 665 654 —
Amortization of deferred stock compensation . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 23,215 24,259 19,043
Tax benefits from employee stock option plans . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 14,957 1,295 —
In-process research and development charge . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . — 200 —
Compensation expense for options granted to consultants and other . . . 8 97 23
Compensation expense related to accelerated vesting of stock
options . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . — 360 —

Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable (net of allowances) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (17,828) (1,414) (5,819)
Refundable income taxes . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (943) — —
Inventories . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (252) (299) (78)
Deferred income taxes . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (30,998) — —
Other current assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (1,382) (1,743) (1,558)
Other assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 293 43 (257)
Accounts payable . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 3,203 (1,141) (1,354)
Accrued expenses . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 5,752 4,218 3,287
Accrued compensation . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 5,325 2,083 2,730
Accrued income taxes . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (1,865) 1,701 164
Restructuring liabilities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (428) — —
Deferred revenue . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 28,214 10,340 6,101

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 85,043 31,684 (6,851)

Investing activities
Purchase of property and equipment . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (9,677) (3,366) (5,605)
Cash used in business combination, net of cash acquired . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (474) (600) —
Purchases of short-term investments . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (471,734) (372,427) (19,850)
Maturities of short-term investments . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 423,440 140,367 19,500

Net cash used in investing activities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (58,445) (236,026) (5,955)

Financing activities
Proceeds from borrowing arrangements . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . — 944 3,325
Principal payments on debt and capital lease obligations . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (3,202) (1,858) (642)
Restricted cash . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 750 3,063 (4,577)
Proceeds from initial public offering of common stock, net . . . . . . . . . . . . . . — 168,639 —
Proceeds from issuance of common stock under stock option and stock
purchase plans, net of repurchases . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 17,161 3,404 66

Proceeds from issuance of redeemable convertible preferred stock, net . . . . . — 29,722 (10)
Repayment of stockholders’ notes . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1,454 76 80

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 16,163 203,990 (1,758)

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 42,761 (352) (14,564)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 11,153 11,505 26,069

Cash and cash equivalents at end of period . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 53,914 $ 11,153 $ 11,505
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NETSCREEN TECHNOLOGIES, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS—(Continued)

(in thousands)

Year Ended September 30,

2003 2002 2001

Supplemental disclosures of cash flow information
Cash paid for interest . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 309 $ 509 $ 213
Cash paid for income taxes . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $8,820 $ 1,089 $ —

Supplemental schedule of noncash investing and financing activities
Property and equipment acquired under capital lease . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ — $ — $ 490
Issuance of warrants in connection with debt arrangements . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ — $ — $ 111
Issuance of common stock for business combination . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ — $ 59,009 $ —
Deferred stock compensation related to options issued below fair market value . . $ — $ 13,461 $ 6,804
Reversal of deferred stock compensation for terminated employees . . . . . . . . . . . $2,970 $ 2,522 $14,043
Deemed dividends on Series E and F preferred stock . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ — $ 28,743 $ 2,923
Conversion of preferred stock to common stock . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ — $115,007 $ —

See accompanying notes.
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NETSCREEN TECHNOLOGIES, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. The Company and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The Company

NetScreen Technologies, Inc. (the “Company” or “NetScreen”) was incorporated in Delaware on
October 30, 1997. NetScreen develops, markets and sells a broad family of integrated network security solutions.
NetScreen’s solutions provide key security technologies, such as virtual private network, denial of service
protection, firewall and intrusion detection and prevention, in a line of easy-to-manage security systems and
appliances.

NetScreen’s firewall and VPN systems and appliances deliver integrated firewall, virtual private network
and denial of service protection capabilities in a single device using the Company’s proprietary application
specific integrated circuits, referred to as the GigaScreen and GigaScreen II ASICs, and proprietary security
operating systems and applications, referred to as ScreenOS. The Company’s NetScreen-5GT firewall and VPN
appliance uses a reduced instruction set computer (RISC) processor and ScreenOS. In addition, the Company’s
family of intrusion detection and prevention appliances run a secure version of the Linux operating system and
use proprietary software and multiple detection methods to identify network and application attacks and prevent
them from reaching mission-critical resources.

The Company’s security systems and appliances can be centrally managed with flexible management
software. For the Company’s firewall and VPN systems and appliances, the Company’s NetScreen-Global PRO
and Global PRO Express enable secure, scalable monitoring of devices, network traffic and security events and
policy administration. For the Company’s IDP appliances, the Company’s NetScreen-IDP Manager gives
administrators control over which traffic the IDP appliance should examine and how it should respond when
intrusions are detected.

Accounting Policies

Revenue recognition

The Company derives revenues primarily from sales of its hardware-based security systems and appliances
and maintenance arrangements and, to a lesser extent, from sales of software products and services. The
Company generally recognizes revenues when persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists, delivery or
customer acceptance, where applicable, has occurred, the fee is fixed or determinable and collection is probable.
For newly introduced technically complex products, the Company defers revenues from the sale of these
products until they have successfully performed in the marketplace and sales returns are not unusually high. The
determination of which products are complex and the timing of the end of deferral for particular products, can be
expected to vary.

The Company defers revenues on sales to its distributors until the distributor has sold the products to its
customers. The Company’s agreements with distributors provide for limited stock rotation and price protection
rights. Stock rotation rights provide distributors with the right to exchange unsold inventory for alternate
products of equal or greater value. Price protection rights grant distributors the right to credit on purchases in the
event of decreases in the prices of the Company’s products. The Company’s agreements with value-added
resellers typically do not include stock rotation or price protection rights. At the time of shipment to value-added
resellers, the Company reserves for estimated returns and exchanges. These revenue reserves are estimated and
adjusted periodically based on historical rates of returns and allowances, inventory levels for value-added
resellers that submit inventory or sell-through reports, the volume of sales to value-added resellers that the
Company ships directly to end customers and for sales to value-added resellers that do not submit inventory or
sell-through reports, accounts receivable balances, payment history and other related factors.
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The Company defers a portion of its product revenues based on the value of certain maintenance
arrangements included with each product sale and recognizes these revenues over the applicable maintenance
period. The Company also derives a portion of its revenues from sales of separate extended maintenance
arrangements. The Company sells extended hardware maintenance, faster hardware replacements for defective
units, software maintenance as well as world-wide technical support with access 24 hours a day, seven days a
week. These arrangements are sold as a bundle or as separate support offerings providing only hardware
maintenance, technical support or software maintenance. For bundled arrangements, revenue is allocated among
the elements at the time of sale based on their fair values as determined by the prices charged by the Company
when each element is sold separately (renewal rate). Revenue from extended maintenance arrangements is
recognized over the period of coverage purchased by the customer.

Accounts receivable

The Company has a large, diversified customer base, which includes customers located in foreign countries.
The Company monitors the creditworthiness of its customers but has experienced losses related to its accounts
receivable in the past. The Company records an allowance for doubtful accounts based on past history, current
economic conditions and the composition of its accounts receivable aging and, in some cases, makes allowances
for specific customers based on several factors, such as the creditworthiness of those customers and payment
history.

Sales return reserve

The Company regularly records a sales return reserve that approximates the aggregate dollar amount of
expected future returns and allowances. The sales return reserve is calculated based on past return history,
product mix, channel mix and, in some cases, allowances for specific customers based on several factors such as
return rights included in the Company’s agreements with customers.

Inventory

Given the volatility of the networking market, the rapid obsolescence of technology and short product life
cycles, the Company writes down inventories to net realizable value based on backlog and forecasted demand.

Warranty obligations

The Company’s hardware products carry a one-year warranty that includes factory repair services or
replacement parts as needed. The Company accrues estimated expenses for warranty obligations at the time that
products are shipped based on historical product repair and replacement information.

Valuation of long-lived assets including goodwill and other intangible assets

The Company reviews property, plant and equipment, goodwill and other intangible assets for impairment
whenever events or circumstances indicate the carrying amount of the assets may not be recoverable. At a
minimum, this review is conducted at least annually. The Company’s review of goodwill and other intangible
assets is based on the estimated future cash flows the assets are expected to generate. The Company’s review is
based on its best estimate of a variety of factors, including future market growth, forecasted revenues and costs
and a strategic review of its business and operations. In the event the Company determines that an asset is
impaired in the future, an adjustment to the value of the asset would be charged to earnings in the period such
determination is made.

Principles of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the Company’s accounts and those of its wholly owned
subsidiaries. Upon consolidation, all significant intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated.
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Foreign currency transactions

Foreign currency transactions of foreign operations are measured using U.S. dollars as the functional
currency. Accordingly, monetary accounts (principally cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, accounts
payable and accrued liabilities) are remeasured using the foreign exchange rate at the balance sheet date.
Accounts related to operations and non-monetary balance sheet items are remeasured at the rate in effect at the
date of the transaction. The effects of foreign currency remeasurement are reported in current operations and
were immaterial for all periods presented.

Use of estimates

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts
reported in the financial statements and accompanying notes. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Reclassifications

Certain amounts have been reclassified to conform to the current presentation.

Cash and cash equivalents

The Company considers all highly liquid investments with maturity of three months or less at the date of
purchase to be cash equivalents. The carrying value of cash and cash equivalents approximated fair value at
September 30, 2003 and 2002.

Concentrations of credit risk

Financial instruments that potentially subject the Company to concentrations of credit risk consist primarily
of cash equivalents, short-term investments and accounts receivable. The Company places all of its cash
equivalents with high credit-rated issuers. Carrying amounts of financial instruments held by the Company,
which include cash equivalents, short-term investments, restricted cash, accounts receivable, accounts payable
and accrued expenses, approximate fair value due to their short duration. The Company performs ongoing credit
evaluations of its customers, generally requires customers to prepay for maintenance and maintains reserves for
potential losses. The Company’s customer base is primarily composed of businesses throughout the United
States, Europe and Asia.

Capitalized software

The Company capitalizes eligible software costs as products achieve technological feasibility, subject to net
realizable value considerations. SFAS No. 86, “Accounting for the Costs of Computer Software to Be Sold,
Leased, or Otherwise Marketed” requires the capitalization of certain software development costs once
technological feasibility is established, which the Company defines as the completion of a working model.
Development costs incurred after the establishment of technological feasibility have not been material and,
therefore, have been expensed.

Advertising costs

The Company’s policy is to expense advertising costs as incurred. The Company’s advertising costs were
approximately $324,000, $630,000 and $4.3 million for the years ended September 30, 2003, 2002 and 2001,
respectively.

Stock-based compensation

The Company accounts for stock-based awards to employees using the intrinsic value method in accordance
with Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 25, “Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees” (“APB 25”).
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Expenses associated with stock-based compensation are being amortized ratably over the vesting periods of the
individual awards consistent with the method described in FASB Interpretation No. 28. The Company provides
additional pro forma disclosures as required under Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS”)
No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation” (“SFAS 123”). Options granted to consultants and other
non-employees are accounted for in accordance with Emerging Issues Task Force Consensus No. 96-18,
“Accounting for Equity Investments That Are Issued to Other Than Employees for Acquiring, or In Conjunction
with Selling, Goods or Services,” and valued using the Black-Scholes method prescribed by SFAS 123. The
options are subject to periodic revaluation over their vesting periods.

Pro forma stock-based compensation

Pro forma information regarding net income (loss) is required by SFAS 123. The information is required to
be determined as if the Company had accounted for its employee stock options granted under the fair value
method. The fair value of these options was estimated at the date of grant using the Black-Scholes method and
the following weighted average assumptions:

Year Ended September 30,

2003 2002 2001

Expected life . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 3 years 3 years 5 years
Expected stock price volatility . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 68% 70% 90%
Risk-free interest rate . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2.06% 3.03% 4.99%
Dividend yield . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . None None None

The fair value of shares issued under the employee stock purchase plan during the year ended September 30,
2003 was estimated using an expected life of 0.89 years, expected price volatility of 54%, a risk free interest rate
of 2.06% and no dividend yield.

For purposes of pro forma disclosures, the estimated fair value of the options is amortized to expense over
the options’ respective vesting periods. If the Company had elected to recognize compensation cost based on the
fair value of the options granted at the grant date as prescribed by SFAS 123, net income (loss) applicable to
common stockholders and net income (loss) per share applicable to common stockholders would have decreased
(increased) to the pro forma amounts indicated in the table below (in thousands, except per share amounts):

Year Ended September 30,

2003 2002 2001

Net income (loss) applicable to common stockholders . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 51,520 $(41,114) $(34,228)
Add: Stock-based compensation expense included in reported net income
(loss) applicable to common stockholders, net of related tax effects . . . . . . . 23,215 24,259 19,043

Deduct: Stock-based compensation expense determined under fair value based
method for all awards, net of related tax effects . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (43,197) (34,756) (23,823)

Pro forma net income (loss) applicable to common stockholders . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 31,538 $(51,611) $(39,008)

Basic net income (loss) per share applicable to common stockholders:
As reported . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 0.65 $ (0.68) $ (2.05)

Pro forma . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 0.40 $ (0.85) $ (2.34)

Shares used in computing basic net income (loss) per share applicable to
common stockholders . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 79,110 60,564 16,696

Diluted net income (loss) per share applicable to common stockholders:
As reported . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 0.61 $ (0.68) $ (2.05)

Pro forma . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 0.37 $ (0.85) $ (2.34)

Shares used in computing diluted net income (loss) per share applicable to
common stockholders . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 84,694 60,564 16,696
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The weighted average fair value of options granted during the years ended September 30, 2003, 2002 and
2001 was $9.18, $6.76 and $4.25 per share, respectively. The fair value of shares issued under the employee
stock purchase plan was $3.99 and $4.22 per share during the years ended September 30, 2003 and 2002,
respectively.

The option valuation models were developed for use in estimating the fair value of traded options, which
have no vesting restrictions and are fully transferable. In addition, option valuation models require the input of
highly subjective assumptions. Because the Company’s employee stock options have characteristics significantly
different from those of traded options and because changes in the subjective input assumptions can materially
affect the fair value estimate, in management’s opinion, the existing models do not necessarily provide a reliable
single measure of the fair value of its employee stock options.

Recent accounting pronouncements

In January 2003, the FASB issued FIN 46, “Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities, an Interpretation of
ARB No. 51.” FIN 46 requires certain variable interest entities to be consolidated by the primary beneficiary of
the entity if the equity investors in the entity do not have the characteristics of a controlling financial interest or
do not have sufficient equity at risk for the entity to finance its activities without additional subordinated
financial support from other parties. FIN 46 is effective for all new variable interest entities created or acquired
after January 31, 2003. For variable interest entities created or acquired prior to February 1, 2003, the provisions
of FIN 46 must be applied for the first interim or annual period ending after December 15, 2003. We do not
expect the adoption of FIN 46 to have a material impact on our results of operations or financial position.

In April 2003, the FASB issued SFAS No. 149, “Amendment of Statement 133 on Derivative Instruments
and Hedging Activities,” (“SFAS 149”) which amends and clarifies financial accounting and reporting for
derivative instruments, including certain derivative instruments embedded in other contracts and for hedging
activities under SFAS 133. SFAS 149 is effective for contracts entered into or modified after June 30, 2003
except for the provisions that were cleared by the FASB in prior pronouncements. The adoption of SFAS 149 did
not have a material impact on our results of operations or financial position.

In May 2003, the FASB issued SFAS No. 150, “Accounting for Certain Financial Instruments with
Characteristics of both Liabilities and Equity” (“SFAS 150”). This statement establishes standards for how an
issuer classifies and measures in its statement of financial position certain financial instruments with
characteristics of both liabilities and equity. In accordance with the standard, financial instruments that embody
obligations for the issuer are required to be classified as liabilities. This Statement shall be effective for financial
instruments entered into or modified after May 31, 2003 and otherwise shall be effective beginning in our first
quarter of fiscal year 2004. The adoption of SFAS 150 is not expected to have a significant impact on our results
of operations or financial position.

2. Balance Sheet Details

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of standard cost, which approximates actual cost (first-in, first-out
method) or market value. The valuation of inventories at the lower of standard cost or market value requires the
use of estimates regarding the amount of inventory that will be sold and the prices at which current inventory will
be sold. These estimates are dependent on the Company’s assessment of current and expected orders from its
customers.
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Inventories consisted of the following (in thousands):

September 30,

2003 2002

Raw materials . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 481 $ 539
Finished goods . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2,020 1,710

$2,501 $2,249

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are carried at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and amortization. Depreciation
is computed using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the property and equipment of one
to three years. Leasehold improvements are amortized over the shorter of the lease term or the useful lives of the
assets.

Property and equipment consisted of the following (in thousands):

September 30,

2003 2002

Computers and equipment . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $11,235 $ 9,631
Software . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 4,165 1,324
Furniture and fixtures . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 204 545
Leasehold improvements . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 3,146 530

18,750 12,030
Accumulated depreciation and amortization . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (8,083) (5,766)

$10,667 $ 6,264

Property and equipment included assets under equipment financing arrangements totaling approximately
$490,000 and $4.8 million at September 30, 2003 and 2002, respectively. The accumulated depreciation related
to assets under equipment financing arrangements was approximately $407,000 and $2.8 million at
September 30, 2003 and 2002, respectively.

Intangible Assets

Intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortization. Amortization of intangible assets is
computed using the straight-line method over their expected useful lives ranging from three to ten years.

Intangible assets consisted of the following (in thousands):

September 30,

2003 2002

Intangible assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 5,800 $5,800
Accumulated amortization . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (1,019) (41)

$ 4,781 $5,759

Comprehensive Gain (Loss)

Comprehensive gain and loss includes certain unrealized gains and losses that are recorded as a component
of stockholders’ equity and excluded from the determination of net income (loss). The Company’s only
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component of accumulated other comprehensive gain (loss) was an unrealized loss on investments of
approximately $267,000 in the year ended September 30, 2003 and an unrealized gain on investments of
approximately $501,000 in the year ended September 30, 2002. The accumulated other comprehensive gains
were approximately $234,000 and $501,000 as of September 30, 2003 and 2002, respectively. Accumulated other
comprehensive gains and losses were not material for the year ended September 30, 2001.

3. Net Income (Loss) Per Share

In accordance with SFAS 128, “Earnings Per Share,” basic net income (loss) per share is calculated using
the weighted-average number of shares of common stock outstanding during the period, less shares subject to
repurchase. Diluted net income (loss) per share gives effect to the dilutive effect of common stock equivalents
consisting of convertible preferred stock, stock options and warrants (using the treasury method). Potentially
dilutive securities have been excluded from the Company’s diluted net loss per share computations for the fiscal
years 2002 and 2001, as their inclusion would be antidilutive. The total number of shares excluded from the
computations of diluted net loss per share was approximately 12,614,000 and 41,554,000 for the years ended
September 30, 2002 and 2001, respectively.

The following table presents the calculation of historical basic and diluted net loss per share applicable to
common stockholders (in thousands, except per share amounts):

Year Ended September 30,

2003 2002 2001

Net income (loss) applicable to common stockholders . . . . . . . . . . . . . $51,520 $(41,114) $(34,228)

Basic :
Weighted-average shares of common stock outstanding . . . . . . . 80,059 63,427 24,247
Less weighted-average shares subject to repurchase (1) . . . . . . . . (949) (2,863) (7,551)

Shares used in computing basic net income (loss) per share
applicable to common stockholders . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 79,110 60,564 16,696

Outstanding dilutive stock options and unvested common
stock . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 5,584 — —

Shares used in computing diluted net income (loss) per share
applicable to common stockholders . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 84,694 60,564 16,696

Basic net income (loss) per share applicable to common
stockholders . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 0.65 $ (0.68) $ (2.05)

Diluted net income (loss) per share applicable to common
stockholders . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 0.61 $ (0.68) $ (2.05)

(1) The weighted-average shares subject to repurchase represent unvested shares that employees purchased by
exercising options before the options had vested. The unvested shares are subject to a right of repurchase by
the Company at the initial purchase price if the employee forfeits the shares before the employee satisfies
the service requirement, generally four years. In addition, shares of common stock purchased by the
founders are subject to vesting.

4. Business Combination

On September 18, 2002, the Company completed its acquisition of OneSecure, a developer of intrusion
protection and detection technology. The acquisition of OneSecure expanded NetScreen’s product portfolio to
include an intrusion detection and prevention device and allows NetScreen to enter the intrusion detection system
market. The purchase price was $60.8 million and the transaction was accounted for as a purchase. The Company
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issued 3.2 million shares of common stock with a fair value of $43.7 million for all of the outstanding stock of
OneSecure. The common stock issued in the acquisition was valued using the average closing price of the
Company’s common stock from two days before to two days after the date the transaction was announced, which
was $13.71 per share. The Company also assumed all of the outstanding stock options of OneSecure, which were
converted into options to purchase approximately 349,000 shares of the Company’s common stock and issued
options to purchase 1.4 million shares of the Company’s common stock with an exercise price of $11.65 per
share in connection with the transaction. The fair value of the stock options assumed and issued in connection
with the transaction, net of deferred stock compensation, was $15.9 million. The options were valued using the
Black-Scholes option pricing model using a volatility factor of 80%, expected lives of two to five years, a
risk-free interest rate of 4.3% and a per share market value of $13.71 as described above. The total purchase price
also includes direct costs associated with the transaction totaling $1.2 million.

Under the purchase method of accounting, the total purchase price is allocated to the tangible and intangible
assets acquired and the liabilities assumed based on their estimated fair values. The excess of the purchase price
over those fair values is recorded as goodwill. The fair values assigned to the tangible and intangible assets
acquired and liabilities assumed are based on estimates and assumptions provided by management and other
information compiled by management, including independent valuations, prepared by independent valuation
specialists, that utilize established valuation techniques appropriate for the high technology industry. In
accordance with SFAS 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets,” goodwill will not be amortized but instead
will be reviewed periodically for impairment. During the year ended September 30, 2003, the Company recorded
a benefit of $3.0 million relating to the net operating losses of OneSecure, as an adjustment to the purchase price
allocation, reducing goodwill.

A summary of the total purchase price is as follows (in thousands):

Common stock . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $43,687
Outstanding OneSecure stock options, net of deferred stock compensation . . . . . . . 2,588
NetScreen stock options issued in connection with the transaction . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 13,328
Direct costs of the acquisition . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1,190

Total purchase price . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $60,793

The total purchase price has been allocated as follows (in thousands):

Equipment . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 728
Other assets and liabilities, net . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 897
Deferred taxes . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2,007
Restructuring liabilities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (3,118)
Accounts payable . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (579)

Fair value of net liabilities assumed . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (65)
In-process research and development . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 200
Purchased technology . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2,450
Technology patent application . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2,550
Non-compete agreements . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 550
Value-added reseller relationships . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 250
Goodwill . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 54,271
Deferred stock compensation . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 587

Total purchase price . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $60,793

OneSecure incurred losses from inception through the acquisition date.

63



Intangible assets

Of the total purchase price, $5.8 million was allocated to intangible assets, including purchased technology,
technology patent application, non-compete agreements and value-added reseller relationships. All of the
intangible assets were valued using the income approach, which measures present worth and anticipated future
benefits of the intangible asset. This approach calculates the value of the intangible asset as being the present
value of the after tax cash flows potentially attributable to it, net of adjustments made to account for the
replacement and obsolescence of technology and a fair rate of return on other assets that contribute to the income
stream attributable to the intangible asset.

Purchased technology consists of products that have reached technological feasibility and includes
OneSecure’s intrusion protection and detection product line. Technology patent application consists of
OneSecure’s patent applications for products whose concept and design are under development. NetScreen is
amortizing the fair value of the purchased technology and technology patent application on a straight-line basis
over useful lives of five and ten years, respectively. Value-added reseller relationships represent the value of
OneSecure’s existing contracts with value-added resellers. NetScreen is amortizing the fair value of value-added
reseller relationships on a straight-line basis over a useful life of five years. Non-compete agreements represent
the value of non-compete agreements signed by key executives of OneSecure. NetScreen is amortizing the fair
value of non-compete agreements on a straight-line basis over a useful life of three years.

In-process research and development

Of the total purchase price, approximately $200,000 was allocated to in-process research and development
and was included in research and development in the consolidated statement of operations in the quarter ended
September 30, 2002. This amount represents the fair value of projects that have not reached technological
feasibility and which had no alternative future use.

Deferred stock compensation

Unvested stock options with an intrinsic value of approximately $587,000 have been allocated to deferred
stock compensation and are being amortized to expense on a straight-line basis over the vesting period. Options
assumed in connection with the acquisition had exercise prices of $5.34 and $10.98 per share, with a weighted
average exercise price of $10.92 per share and a weighted average remaining contractual life of approximately
5.6 years. Options to purchase a total of approximately 349,000 shares of NetScreen common stock were
assumed. All stock options assumed were exercisable and options to purchase approximately 67,000 shares of
NetScreen common stock assumed were vested.

Pro forma results

The following unaudited pro forma financial information presents the combined results of operations of
NetScreen and OneSecure as if the acquisition had occurred on October 1, 2000. The unaudited pro forma
financial information for 2002 was derived from NetScreen’s audited statement of operations for the year ended
September 30, 2002 and OneSecure’s unaudited statement of operations for the period October 1, 2001 to
September 18, 2002 (the date the acquisition was completed). Due to different fiscal years, the unaudited pro
forma financial information for 2001 was derived from NetScreen’s audited consolidated statement of operations
for the year ended September 30, 2001 and OneSecure’s audited statement of operations for the year ended
December 31, 2001.

Adjustments of $1.0 million have been made to the combined pro forma results of operations for both 2002
and 2001, reflecting the amortization of the intangible assets acquired and deferred stock compensation
associated with the OneSecure stock options assumed by NetScreen. The unaudited pro forma basic and diluted
net loss per share computations are based upon the weighted average of outstanding common stock of NetScreen
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during the periods presented, plus the number of shares of NetScreen common stock issued to complete the
acquisition as if the acquisition had occurred on October 1, 2000. The unaudited pro forma financial information
is not intended to represent or be indicative of the consolidated results of operations or financial condition that
NetScreen would have reported had the acquisition been completed as of the dates presented and should not be
taken as representative of the future consolidated results of operations.

Unaudited pro forma financial information is as follows (in thousands, except per share amounts):

Year Ended

2002 2001

Revenues . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 139,482 $ 86,337
Net loss applicable to common stockholders . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ (55,188) $(68,184)
Basic and diluted net loss per share applicable to common stockholders . . . . . . . $ (0.87) $ (3.43)

The pro forma financial information for the year ended 2001 includes non-recurring restructuring and asset
impairment costs incurred by OneSecure of $6.1 million and $3.0 million, respectively.

5. Guarantees

In November 2002, the FASB issued FIN 45, “Guarantor’s Accounting and Disclosure Requirements for
Guarantees, Including Indirect Guarantees of Indebtedness of Others.” FIN 45 requires a company that is a
guarantor to make specific disclosures about its obligations under certain guarantees that it has issued. FIN 45
also requires a company (the Guarantor) to recognize, at the inception of a guarantee, a liability for the
obligations it has undertaken in issuing the guarantee.

Certain of the Company’s operating lease arrangements include collateral restrictions that require the
Company to maintain standby letters of credit secured by restricted cash. Total restricted cash as of September
30, 2003 was $861,000, of which $38,000 is classified as current as it is scheduled to become unrestricted in
January 2004.

Generally, the Company indemnifies, under pre-determined conditions and limitations, its customers for
infringement of third-party intellectual property rights by its products or services. The Company seeks to limit its
liability for such indemnity to an amount not to exceed the sales price of the products or services. The Company
does not believe, based on information available, that it is probable that any material amounts will be paid under
these guarantees.

The Company’s hardware products carry a one-year warranty that includes factory repair services or
replacement parts as needed. The Company’s software products carry a three-month warranty. The Company
accrues estimated expenses for warranty obligations at the time that products are shipped based on historical
product repair and replacement information. Factors that affect the Company’s warranty liability include the
number of installed units, historical rates of warranty claims and cost per claim. The Company periodically
assesses the adequacy of its recorded warranty liabilities and adjusts the amounts as necessary.

Changes in the Company’s estimated product warranty liability during the year ended September 30, 2003
were as follows (in thousands):

Balance September 30, 2002 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $1,693
Additions charged to cost of revenues during the period . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 350
Settlements made during the period . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (336)

Balance September 30, 2003 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $1,707
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6. Financial Instruments

Investments, including cash equivalents, restricted cash and short-term investments were as follows (in
thousands):

September 30,

2003 2002

Money market and mutual funds . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 3,245 $ 8,485
Commercial paper . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 28,825 75,635
U.S. government securities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 76,486 40,626
Municipal bonds and notes . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 207,423 122,450

Total investments . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 315,979 247,196
Amounts classified as cash equivalents and restricted cash . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (29,241) (8,485)

Total short-term investments . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $286,738 $238,711

Maturities of short-term investments as of September 30, 2003 were as follows:

Due within one year . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $230,363
Due between one year and two years . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 56,375

Total short-term investments . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $286,738

Unrealized gains on available-for-sale securities at September 30, 2003 and 2002 were $234,000 and
$501,000, respectively.

Restricted cash

As of September 30, 2003 and 2002, the Company had approximately $861,000 and $1.6 million,
respectively, as collateral for standby letters of credit in connection with facility leases.

7. Long-Term Debt and Capital Lease Obligations

In October 1998, the Company entered into a $318,000 (later adjusted to $404,000) equipment leasing
arrangement. During the year ended September 30, 2000, the Company expanded the equipment leasing
arrangement by an additional $500,000. During the quarter ended December 31, 2002, we repaid the outstanding
borrowings under this agreement in full.

In February 2001, we entered into an equipment leasing arrangement of $514,000. The lease is payable in
monthly installments of principal and interest of approximately $15,000 through February 2004. As of
September 30, 2003, approximately $72,000 was outstanding under this arrangement.

In April 2001, we entered into a loan and security agreement under which we could borrow up to $3.5
million to finance eligible equipment purchases. The lender had a security interest in the purchased equipment.
Borrowings under the agreement bore interest at the U.S. Treasury note rate for notes with a three-year maturity
plus 3.75% and were payable in equal monthly installments over a three-year term. A final payment equal to 9%
of the amount borrowed, due at the end of the three-year term, has been treated as an additional finance charge
and is being amortized over the term of the loan. We are not required to meet any financial covenants under this
agreement. Borrowings under this agreement totaled $2.0 million at an annual interest rate of 8.2% and the
available commitment expired on November 30, 2001. During the quarter ended June 30, 2003, we repaid the
outstanding borrowings under this agreement in full.
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In August 2001, we entered into a loan and security agreement under which we could borrow up to $3.0
million to finance eligible equipment purchases. The lender had a security interest in the purchased equipment.
Borrowings under the agreement bore interest at the U.S. Treasury note rate for notes with a three-year maturity
plus 9.5% and were payable in equal monthly installments over terms ranging from 33 to 36 months. Borrowings
under this agreement totaled $1.3 million at an annual interest rate of 13.8% and the available commitment
expired on November 30, 2001. During the quarter ended June 30, 2003, we repaid the outstanding borrowings
under this agreement in full.

Equipment acquired under these arrangements has been included in Property and Equipment on the
accompanying balance sheet.

8. Commitments and Contingencies

Commitments

The Company leases its office facilities under noncancelable operating leases expiring at various dates
through May 2008.

In October 2002, we entered into a lease for approximately 156,000 square feet for our corporate
headquarters in Sunnyvale, California. Rent payments under the lease are approximately $231,000 per month and
commenced February 14, 2003. The lease terminates on May 13, 2008. Under the terms of the lease, we may
lease an additional approximately 22,000 square feet in the facility at an additional monthly rent of
approximately $32,000. We can exercise this option to lease the additional space at anytime through February 14,
2004. The lease was secured by a $692,000 standby letter of credit as of September 30, 2003.

Rent expense was $4.6 million, $4.3 million and $3.4 million for the years ended September 30, 2003, 2002
and 2001, respectively.

We have entered into several leases for domestic and foreign sales office facilities. The leases expire at
various dates through November 2005. The related cost of the leases is approximately $143,000 per month.

Future minimum lease payments under noncancelable operating leases at September 30, 2003 were as
follows (in thousands):

Year ending September 30:
2004 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 4,095
2005 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 3,128
2006 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2,772
2007 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2,766
2008 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1,729

Total minimum payments . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $14,490

We utilize three contract manufacturers to manufacture, test and fulfill orders. We purchase from these and
other suppliers on a purchase order basis and do not have a long-term supply contract with any of them. At
September 30, 2003, we had placed non-cancelable purchase orders totaling $7.1 million.

Contingencies

The Company is subject to legal proceedings, claims and litigation arising in the ordinary course of
business. While the outcome of these matters is currently not determinable, the Company does not expect that the
ultimate costs to resolve these matters will have a material adverse affect on its consolidated financial position,
results of operations or cash flows.
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9. Restructuring Liabilities

The Company acquired OneSecure, Inc. in September 2002. In connection with the acquisition, the
Company assumed noncancelable operating leases for domestic sales offices which were not occupied by
OneSecure and which will not be occupied by NetScreen. In addition, the Company assumed the noncancelable
operating lease for OneSecure’s headquarters in Sunnyvale, California, which is a duplicate facility. The
Company has recorded a restructuring liability for the net present value of these leases, net of expected sublease
income, for the periods these facilities will be unoccupied. The liability for the net present value of future net
lease payments for the excess facilities, discounted at a 6.5% borrowing rate, will decrease as required lease
payments are made as follows:

Year ending September 30:
2004 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 648
2005 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 602
2006 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 527
2007 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 444
2008 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 434
Thereafter . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 35

Total net present value . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $2,690

10. Redeemable Convertible Preferred Stock

In October 2001, the Company completed the sale of 5,762,502 shares of the Company’s Series F
redeemable convertible preferred stock, $0.001 par value per share, at a price of $5.2061 per share, for proceeds
of $29.7 million, net of issuance costs of $278,000. The deemed fair value of the shares at the time of issuance
was approximately $10.00 per share. The difference between the deemed fair value of $10.00 per share and the
issue price of $5.2061 per share was accounted for as a deemed dividend totaling $27.6 million in the quarter
ended December 31, 2001.

The Company’s Series E and Series F redeemable convertible preferred stock were entitled to cumulative
dividends at the rate of approximately $0.31 and $0.42 per share, respectively. The Company recorded deemed
dividends of approximately $625,000 and $493,000 to account for the cumulative dividends on its Series E and
Series F convertible preferred stock in the year ended September 30, 2002. The Company recorded deemed
dividends of $2.9 million in the year ended September 30, 2001 to account for the cumulative dividend on its
Series E convertible preferred stock.

All outstanding redeemable convertible preferred stock automatically converted into an aggregate of
38,235,584 shares of common stock upon the closing of the Company’s initial public offering (IPO) in December
2001. In addition, all dividend rights, as well as voting and liquidation rights, attributable to the preferred stock
terminated upon the closing of the IPO.

11. Stockholders’ Equity

Preferred Stock

The Company is authorized to issue up to 10,000,000 shares of preferred stock with a par value of $0.001
per share. No shares were issued and outstanding at September 30, 2003.

Common Stock

On December 17, 2001, the Company closed the sale of 11,500,000 shares of common stock, including the
underwriters’ exercise of an over-allotment option, in its IPO at a price of $16.00 per share. A total of $184.0
million in gross proceeds was raised from these transactions. After deducting the underwriting discount of $12.9
million and $2.5 million of offering expenses, net proceeds were $168.6 million.
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The Company is authorized to issue up to 500,000,000 shares of common stock. As of September 30, 2003,
81,987,529 shares of common stock were issued and outstanding and common stock was reserved for future
issuance as follows:

Outstanding stock options . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 11,904,304
Shares of common stock available for grant under stock option plans . . . . . . . . . 18,943,370
Shares of common stock available for issuance under the employee stock
purchase plan . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 678,607

31,526,281

2001 Employees Stock Purchase Plan

In September 2001, the Company’s Board of Directors adopted the 2001 Employee Stock Purchase Plan
(the “2001 ESPP”). The 2001 ESPP was approved by the Company’s stockholders in November 2001. The 2001
ESPP is designed to enable eligible employees to purchase shares of the Company’s common stock at a discount
and was effective on December 12, 2001, the first day on which price quotations were available for the
Company’s common stock on The Nasdaq National Market. Except for the first offering period, each offering
period will be for two years and will consist of four six-month purchase periods. The first offering period began
December 12, 2001 and ended on April 30, 2002. All subsequent offering periods begin on November 1 and May
1. The purchase price for shares of common stock under the 2001 ESPP is 85% of the lesser of the fair market
value of the Company’s common stock on the first day of the applicable offering period or the last day of each
purchase period.

The Company initially reserved 1,000,000 shares of common stock for issuance under the 2001 ESPP. The
number of shares reserved for issuance under the 2001 ESPP will increase automatically on October 1 of each
year by an amount equal to the number of shares sold under the plan in the preceding fiscal year.

During the year ended September 30, 2003, 289,658 and 31,735 shares of common stock at prices of $9.01
and $11.66 per share, respectively, were issued under the 2001 ESPP. During the year ended September 30,
2002, 86,360 shares of common stock at a price of $8.36 per share were issued under the 2001 ESPP. As of
September 30, 2003, 678,607 shares were reserved for future issuance.

Employee Stock Option Plans

1997 Equity Incentive Plan

In November 1997, the Company adopted the 1997 Equity Incentive Plan (the “1997 Plan”), which provides
for the granting of incentive stock options and nonqualified stock options and the making of restricted stock
awards to employees, officers, directors and consultants. The 1997 Plan authorized the grant of options to
purchase up to 23,200,014 shares of the Company’s common stock. Under the 1997 Plan, the Company’s Board
of Directors determines the term of each award and the award price. In the case of incentive stock options, the
exercise price may be established at an amount not less than the fair market value of the Company’s common
stock on the date of grant, while nonqualified stock options may have an exercise price not less than 85% of the
fair market value on the date of grant. Options granted may be immediately exercisable. The Company has the
right to purchase any exercised and unvested shares at the original exercise price. Options generally vest ratably
over a four-year period commencing with the grant date and expire no later than ten years from the date of grant.

2001 Equity Incentive Plan

In September 2001, the Company’s Board of Directors adopted the 2001 Equity Incentive Plan (the “2001
Plan”). The 2001 Plan was approved by the Company’s stockholders in November 2001 and was effective on
December 12, 2001, the date of the Company’s IPO. The 2001 Plan provides for the granting of incentive stock
options, nonqualified stock options, restricted stock and stock bonuses to employees, officers, directors,
consultants, independent contractors and advisors.
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The 2001 Plan is the successor to the Company’s 1997 Plan and no additional shares can be granted under
the 1997 Plan. The Company has reserved 20,000,000 shares of common stock for issuance under the 2001 Plan.
The number of shares reserved for issuance under the 2001 Plan increased by the number of shares available for
grant under the 1997 Plan on December 12, 2001 and any shares that are canceled or repurchased under the 1997
Plan after December 12, 2001. Shares subject to awards which cease to be subject to such award for any reason
other than exercise of such award, which are forfeited or repurchased by the Company or which are subject to an
award that otherwise terminates without shares being issued will again be available for grant and issuance under
the 2001 Plan. In addition, the number of shares reserved for issuance under the 2001 Plan will increase
automatically on October 1 of each year by an amount equal to 5% of the Company’s total outstanding shares of
common stock as of the immediately preceding September 30th.

The terms of options and restricted stock awards granted under the 2001 Plan are similar to the terms that
apply to options and restricted stock awards under the 1997 Plan. The Company’s Board of Directors determines
the terms of stock bonuses under the 2001 Plan, which may be awarded for past services already rendered to the
Company or which may be awarded upon satisfaction of certain performance goals set out in advance. The 2001
Plan additionally provides for automatic option grants to outside directors of the Company that vest monthly over
three years. The vesting of automatic option grants to outside directors accelerates in the event of a dissolution or
liquidation of the Company, a merger or the sale of all or substantially all of the Company’s assets.

2002 Stock Option Plan

In November 2002, the Company adopted the 2002 Stock Option Plan (the “2002 Plan”), which provides for
the granting of nonqualified stock options to employees, officers, consultants, independent contractors and
advisors of the Company. The 2002 Plan authorizes the grant of options to purchase up to 125,000 shares of the
Company’s common stock. Under the 2002 Plan, the Company’s Board of Directors determines the term of each
award and the award price. Nonqualified stock options may have an exercise price not less than 100% of the fair
market value on the date of grant. Options generally vest ratably over a four-year period commencing with the
grant date and expire no later than ten years from the date of grant.

OneSecure 2000 Stock Option Plan

In connection with its acquisition of OneSecure in September 2002, the Company assumed all of the
outstanding OneSecure stock options under the OneSecure 2000 Stock Option Plan (the “OneSecure Plan”),
which were converted into options to purchase approximately 351,000 shares of the Company’s common stock.
The stock options generally have terms of between five and ten years and generally vest over a four-year period.
These options were assumed at prices of $5.34 and $10.98 per share, with a weighted average exercise price of
$10.92 per share. All stock options assumed were exercisable and approximately 67,000 of the stock options
assumed were vested with a weighted average exercise price of $10.73 per share. No further stock options can be
granted under the OneSecure Plan.
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The following is a summary of activity for the OneSecure Plan and the 1997, 2001 and 2002 Plans:

Outstanding Options

Shares
Available
for Grant

Number of
Shares

Weighted
Average
Exercise
Price

Options outstanding as of September 30, 2000 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 833,460 4,454,374 $ 1.22
Options authorized . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 5,000,000 —
Options granted . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (5,167,700) 5,167,700 $ 5.01
Options exercised . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . — (69,582) $ 1.90
Options canceled . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 660,343 (660,343) $ 3.56
Shares repurchased . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 987,686 — $ 0.48

Options outstanding as of September 30, 2001 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2,313,789 8,892,149 $ 3.23
Options authorized . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 20,000,000 —
Options granted . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (5,381,696) 5,381,696 $ 9.89
Options exercised . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . — (1,038,600) $ 2.58
Options canceled . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1,019,117 (1,019,117) $ 5.85
Shares repurchased . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 108,141 — $ 0.52
Assumption of OneSecure Plan options . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . — 350,590 $10.92

Options outstanding as of September 30, 2002 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 18,059,351 12,566,718 $ 6.14
Options authorized . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 4,019,650 —
Options granted . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (4,227,556) 4,227,556 $19.50
Options exercised . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . — (3,786,717) $ 3.75
Options canceled . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1,076,396 (1,103,253) $ 9.15
Shares repurchased . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 15,529 —

Options outstanding as of September 30, 2003 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 18,943,370 11,904,304 $11.37

As of September 30, 2003, 3,236,383 shares were exercisable at a weighted average exercise price of $5.61,
of which 2,874,722 shares were vested but not exercised at a weighted average exercise price of $6.06 per share.
As of September 30, 2003, 383,867 unvested options had been exercised and were subject to repurchase.

In addition, the following table summarizes information about options under the OneSecure Plan and the
1997, 2001 and 2002 Plans that were outstanding and exercisable at September 30, 2003:

Options Outstanding Options Exercisable

Range of
Exercise Prices

Number
Outstanding

Weighted
Average

Remaining
Contractual
Life (Years)

Weighted
Average
Exercise
Price

Number
Exercisable

Weighted
Average
Exercise
Price

$ 0.13–$ 0.13 11,542 5.9 $ 0.13 11,542 $ 0.13
$ 0.50–$ 0.75 1,157,225 6.6 $ 0.71 906,728 $ 0.71
$ 2.50–$ 2.50 250,717 7.0 $ 2.50 184,214 $ 2.50
$ 4.50–$ 6.00 3,353,110 7.7 $ 5.25 1,324,199 $ 5.19
$ 7.50–$11.20 964,066 7.7 $ 9.70 259,305 $ 9.78
$11.65–$17.44 3,011,710 7.6 $13.46 480,246 $12.90
$17.68–$25.64 3,155,934 9.6 $21.03 70,149 $20.52

$ 0.13–$25.64 11,904,304 8.1 $11.37 3,236,383 $ 5.61
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Nonplan Option Grants

During the year ended September 30, 2000, the Company issued options to purchase 578,000 shares of
common stock to an employee and consultants at exercise prices ranging from $0.0005 to $0.75 per share. The
Company granted options to purchase an additional 8,000 shares at an exercise price of $5.00 per share during
the year ended September 30, 2001. The Company issued nonplan options due to the limited number of options
available under the 1997 Plan. Of the 586,000 nonplan options granted, 420,000 were to an employee and
166,000 were to consultants. The employee options vest over four years. The Company recorded $1.2 million of
deferred stock compensation expense related to the employee during fiscal 2000 and 2001. The vast majority of
the consultant options vesting was accelerated in August 2000.

During the year ended September 30, 2000, 490,000 shares were exercised at prices ranging from $0.0005
to $0.75 per share. During the year ended September 30, 2001, 30,000 shares were exercised at a price of $0.50
per share. During the year ended September 30, 2002, 62,000 shares were exercised at prices ranging from $0.50
per share to $5.00 per share. During the year ended September 30, 2003, 4,000 shares were exercised at a price of
$5.00 per share. As of September 30, 2003, no options were outstanding.

Restricted Stock Program to Certain Employees

In July 2000, the Company cancelled 474,000 options granted in March 2000 and replaced them with
restricted stock with an exercise price of $0.0005. The Company is recording deferred stock compensation over
the vesting period of the restricted stock for the difference between the fair market value in July 2000 of $1.50
and the exercise price of $0.0005.

Deferred Stock Compensation

During the years ended September 30, 2002 and 2001, in connection with the grant of stock options to
employees, the Company recorded deferred stock compensation of $13.5 million and $6.8 million, respectively,
representing the difference between the exercise price and the deemed fair value for financial reporting purposes
of the Company’s common stock on the date these stock options were granted. During the year ended
September 30, 2002, the Company also recorded deferred stock compensation of approximately $587,000
representing the intrinsic value of unvested stock options assumed in connection with the acquisition of
OneSecure. Restricted stock acquired through the exercise of unvested stock options is subject to the Company’s
right to repurchase the unvested stock at the price paid, which right lapses over time. Deferred stock
compensation is included as a reduction of stockholders’ equity and is being amortized ratably over the vesting
period of the individual award, generally four years, consistent with the method described in FASB Interpretation
No. 28. During the years ended September 30, 2003, 2002 and 2001, the Company recorded amortization of
deferred stock compensation of $23.2 million, $24.3 million and $19.0 million, respectively, related to employee
stock options. This stock-based compensation expense relates to stock options granted to individuals in all cost of
revenues and operating expense categories and has been included in those categories. At September 30, 2003,
$16.0 million of deferred stock compensation related to employee stock options remained unamortized.

Stockholders’ Notes Receivable

The stockholders’ notes receivable were issued in conjunction with the issuance of common stock under the
Company’s stock option plan. The notes were secured by the related shares of common stock and are full
recourse notes, with interest compounded annually on the unpaid balance at a rate of 6% per year. During the
years ended September 30, 2003 and 2002, the Company received payments on the notes of $1.5 million and
$76,000, respectively. During the year ended September 30, 2001, the Company received payments on the notes
of $80,000 and canceled notes totaling $399,000 in connection with the repurchase of unvested shares.
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12. Income Taxes

The components of the provision (benefit) for income taxes is as follows (in thousands):

Year Ended September 30,

2003 2002 2001

Current:
Federal . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 19,637 $ 8,147 $—
State . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1,755 851 —
Foreign . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 468 743 168

Total current . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 21,860 9,741 168

Deferred:
Federal . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (27,029) (5,033) —
State . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (4,972) (650) —
Foreign . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . — — —

Total deferred . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (32,001) (5,683) —

$(10,141) $ 4,058 $168

The U.S. income tax benefit related to the exercise of certain employee stock options decreased accrued
income taxes and was credited to additional paid-in capital. Such amount was $15.0 million and $1.3 million for
the years ended September 30, 2003 and September 30, 2002, respectively.

Income (loss) before income taxes consisted of the following (in thousands):

Year Ended September 30,

2003 2002 2001

Domestic . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $39,890 $(9,513) $(31,386)
Foreign . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1,489 1,200 249

Income (loss) before income taxes . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $41,379 $(8,313) $(31,137)

The Company’s income tax provision (benefit) differs from the income tax provision (benefit) determined
by applying the U.S. federal statutory rate to net income (loss) as follows (in thousands):

Year Ended September 30,

2003 2002 2001

Income tax provision (benefit) at U.S. statutory rate . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 14,482 $(2,909) $(10,898)
State income tax, net of federal benefit . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1,140 201 —
Stock based compensation . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 5,183 4,492 —
Research tax credits . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (1,086) (686) —
Extra-territorial income tax benefit . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (1,050) — —
Valuation allowance . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (29,575) 1,515 10,898
Foreign income taxes for which no U.S. benefit is currently
recognizable . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . — 323 168

Other, net . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 765 1,122 —

Provision (benefit) for income taxes . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $(10,141) $ 4,058 $ 168
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Deferred income taxes reflect the net tax effects of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for income tax purposes. The
principal components of deferred tax assets and liabilities are as follows (in thousands):

September 30,

2003 2002

Deferred tax assets:
Deferred compensation . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 9,086 $ 11,922
Net operating loss carryforwards . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 16,951 17,855
Tax credit carryforwards . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1,285 4,303
Deferred revenue . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 15,451 5,360
Other reserves and accruals . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 6,179 6,441

Total gross deferred tax assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 48,952 45,881
Valuation allowance . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (13,032) (43,577)

Total deferred tax assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 35,920 2,304
Deferred tax liabilities:

Acquisition related intangibles . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (1,912) (2,304)

Net deferred tax assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 34,008 $ —

Prior to fiscal year 2003, the Company had provided a valuation allowance on its deferred tax assets because
of uncertainty regarding their realization. The valuation allowance decreased by $30.5 million during the year
ended September 30, 2003 and increased by $18.2 million and $11.4 million during the years ended September
30, 2002 and 2001, respectively. During fiscal year 2003, the Company reversed $29.6 million of the valuation
allowance because it believes that it is more likely than not that these deferred tax assets will be realized in the
foreseeable future. This determination was made principally based on the earnings history of the Company over
the past several years, in addition to future taxable income expected to be generated by the Company. The
portion of the valuation allowance that was not reversed relates to acquired tax attributes that are subject to an
annual limitation imposed by Section 382 of the Internal Revenue Code. If these acquired tax attributes are
realized, they will first reduce unamortized goodwill, then other non-current intangible assets of acquired
subsidiaries, and then income tax expense.

As of September 30, 2003, the Company’s state tax credit carry forwards were $2.0 million, which currently
carry forward indefinitely. As of September 30, 2003, the Company had federal and state net operating loss carry
forwards of $42.8 million and $38.8 million, respectively. If not utilized, the net operating loss carry forwards
will begin to expire in fiscal 2013. Utilization of the net operating loss and tax credit carry forwards are subject
to a substantial annual limitation due to the ownership change limitations provided by the Internal Revenue Code
Section 382 and Section 383 and similar state provisions. The annual limitation may result in the expiration of
net operating loss and tax credit carry forwards before utilization. California suspended the use of state net
operating loss carry forwards for fiscal 2003.

13. Business Segment Information

The Company operates in one business segment, the sale of integrated network security solutions.

The Chief Executive Officer has been identified as the Chief Operating Decision Maker (“CODM”) because
he has the final authority over resource allocation decisions and performance assessment. The CODM does not
receive discrete financial information about individual components of the Company’s business.
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The Company sells its products and technology primarily to customers in the Americas, Asia and the Pacific
Rim (APAC) and Europe, the Middle East and Africa (EMEA). Revenues by geographic region were as follows
(in thousands):

Year Ended September 30,

2003 2002 2001

Revenues:
Americas . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 96,591 $ 61,886 $45,537
APAC . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 94,589 46,705 25,228
EMEA . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 54,162 29,891 14,798

Total . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $245,342 $138,482 $85,563

No single customer accounted for 10% or more of revenues in the years ended September 30, 2003, 2002
and 2001. One customer accounted for more than 10% of accounts receivable as of September 30, 2003 and
another customer accounted for more than 10% of accounts receivable as of September 30, 2002. As of
September 30, 2001, no single customer accounted for more that 10% of accounts receivable. The Company
generally does not require any collateral from its customers.

14. 401(k) Plan

The Company has a defined contribution plan intended to qualify under Section 401 of the Internal Revenue
Code, or a 401(k) plan. All U.S. employees may elect to contribute up to 15%, but no greater than $12,000 per
year in 2003, $11,000 per year in 2002 and $10,500 per year in prior years, of their annual compensation to the
plan through salary deferrals, subject to IRS limits. For the years ended September 30, 2003, 2002 and 2001, the
Company made no matching contributions to the plan.

15. Related Party Transactions

During the years ended September 30, 2003, 2002 and 2001, we sold products and services to companies
affiliated with the brother of Feng Deng, an executive officer and director of the Company. The total amount sold
to these companies during the years ended September 30, 2003, 2002 and 2001 was approximately $102,000,
$767,000 and $1,574,000, respectively. As of September 30, 2003, accounts receivable included approximately
$25,000 from these companies.

During the years ended September 30, 2003 and 2002, we sold products and services to companies affiliated
with members of our Board of Directors. The total sold to these companies during the years ended September 30,
2003 and 2002 was approximately $310,000 and $124,000, respectively. As of September 30, 2003, accounts
receivable included approximately $1,000 from these companies.

16. Subsequent Event

On November 14, 2003, the Company completed the acquisition of Neoteris, Inc., a provider of secure
sockets layer virtual private networking (SSL VPN) solutions. The Company paid $20.0 million in cash and
issued 9.7 million shares of common stock for all the outstanding stock of Neoteris. The Company also assumed
all of the outstanding stock options of Neoteris, which were converted into options to purchase 1.2 million shares
of our common stock. The Company will pay Neoteris stockholders and option holders up to an additional $30
million in cash upon the achievement of certain revenue milestones. The Neoteris, Inc. acquisition will be
accounted for under the purchase method.
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NETSCREEN TECHNOLOGIES, INC.
SCHEDULE II—VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS

(in thousands)

Description

Balance at
Beginning
of Period

Additions
Charged to
Costs and
Expenses

Deductions
(1)

Balance at
End of
Period

Allowance for doubtful accounts receivable:
Year ended September 30, 2001 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $1,716 $3,251 $2,093 $2,874
Year ended September 30, 2002 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $2,874 $1,544 $1,575 $2,843
Year ended September 30, 2003 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $2,843 $ 189 $ 24 $3,008

(1) Represents amounts written off as uncollectible.

Description

Balance at
Beginning
of Period

Additions
Charged to
Costs and
Expenses

Deductions
(1)

Balance at
End of
Period

Allowance for sales returns:
Year ended September 30, 2001 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $1,942 $ 4,706 $4,338 $2,310
Year ended September 30, 2002 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $2,310 $10,157 $7,526 $4,941
Year ended September 30, 2003 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $4,941 $ 6,256 $4,428 $6,769

(1) Represents actual returns taken against the allowance.
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EXHIBIT INDEX

Set forth below is a list of exhibits that are being filed or incorporated by reference into this Report:

Incorporated by Reference

Exhibit
Number Exhibit Description Form File No.

Date of
First Filing

Exhibit
Number

Filed
Herewith

2.01 Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated
August 22, 2002, among the Registrant, Tango
Acquisition Corp. and OneSecure, Inc. 8-K 000-33387 10/03/02 2.01

2.02 Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated
October 3, 2003, among the Registrant, Neon
Acquisition Corp. and Neoteris, Inc. 8-K 000-33387 11/26/03 2.01

3.01 Registrant’s Form of Restated Certificate of
Incorporation. S-1 333-71048 10/05/01 3.02

3.02 Registrant’s Restated Bylaws, effective
December 17, 2001. 10-Q 000-33387 05/15/02 3.01

4.01 Fifth Amended and Restated Investors’ Rights
Agreement dated October 3, 2001. S-1 333-71048 10/05/01 4.01

4.02 Specimen Stock Certificate representing shares
of Registrant’s Common Stock. S-1/A 333-71048 11/23/01 4.02

10.01 Registrant’s 1997 Equity Incentive Plan, as
amended August 10, 2001, and form of stock
option agreement. (1) S-1 333-71048 10/05/01 10.02

10.02 Registrant’s 2001 Equity Incentive Plan, and
form of stock option agreement. (1) S-1/A 333-71048 12/10/01 10.03

10.03 Registrant’s 2001 Employee Stock Purchase
Plan. (1) S-1/A 333-71048 12/10/01 10.04

10.04 Registrant’s 1997 Equity Incentive Plan form
of stock option agreement for executive
officers. (1) S-1 333-71048 10/05/01 10.05

10.05 OneSecure, Inc. 2000 Stock Option/Stock
Issuance Plan, and forms of stock option
agreements. (1) S-8 333-100088 09/25/02 4.01

10.06 Neoteris, Inc. 2001 Equity Incentive Plan, and
forms of stock option agreements. (1) S-8 333-110719 11/24/03 4.01

10.07 Stock Option Agreement by and between
OneSecure, Inc. and Nir Zuk dated as of
January 24, 2001. (1) 8-K 000-33387 10/03/02 99.06

10.08 Stock Option Agreement by and between
OneSecure, Inc. and Nir Zuk dated as of July 5,
2001. (1) 8-K 000-33387 10/03/02 99.07

10.09 Stock Option and Vesting Waiver Agreement
by and between Nir Zuk and the Registrant
dated August 22, 2002. (1) 8-K 000-33387 10/03/02 99.08

10.10 Restricted Common Stock Purchase Agreement
by and between OneSecure, Inc. and Nir Zuk
dated as of February 18, 2000. 8-K 000-33387 10/03/02 99.04
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Incorporated by Reference

Exhibit
Number Exhibit Description Form File No.

Date of
First Filing

Exhibit
Number

Filed
Herewith

10.11 Registrant’s Form of Offer Letter for executive
officers. (1) S-1 333-71048 10/05/01 10.06

10.12 Offer Letter to Nir Zuk dated August 22,
2002. (1)(2) 8-K 000-33387 10/03/02 99.02

10.13 Form of Noncompetition Agreement by and
between the Registrant and Nir Zuk dated August
22, 2002. (1) 8-K 000-33387 10/03/02 99.10

10.14 Amended and Restated Employment Agreement
by and between DanaStreet Internet, Inc., a
Delaware corporation and Krishna Kolluri dated
April 19, 2001. (1) — — — — X

10.15 Amendment and Assumption Agreement by and
between Krishna Kolluri and the Registrant dated
October 3, 2003 (1) — — — — X

10.16 Vesting Waiver Agreement by and between
Krishna Kolluri and the Registrant dated October
3, 2003. (1) — — — — X

10.17 Noncompetition Agreement by and between the
Registrant and Krishna Kolluri dated October 3,
2003. (1) — — — — X

10.18 Form of Indemnity Agreement to be entered into
by and between the Registrant and each
executive officer and director. (1) S-1 333-71048 10/05/01 10.07

10.19 Form of Promissory Notes from executive
officers to the Registrant made in connection
with exercise of options. (1) S-1 333-71048 10/05/01 10.08

10.20 Manufacturing Agreement by and between Flash
Electronics, Inc. and the Registrant dated January
3, 2002. (2) 10-Q 000-33387 02/14/02 10.01

10.21 Software and License Agreement by and between
Information Resource Engineering, Inc. (now
SafeNet, Inc.) and the Registrant dated June 30,
2000. S-1 333-71048 10/05/01 10.12

10.22 Lease Agreement by and between Ariba, Inc. and
the Registrant dated October 18, 2002. 10-K 000-33387 12/30/02 10.22

10.23 Sublease Agreement by and between Philips
Electronics North America Corporation and the
Registrant dated September 29, 2000. S-1 333-71048 10/05/01 10.13

10.24 Purchase/Service Agreement by and between
Avaya, Inc. and the Registrant dated
November 21, 2000. S-1 333-71048 10/05/01 10.14

10.25 Manufacturing Agreement by and between
A-Plus Manufacturing Corporation (now
Solectron Corporation) and the Registrant dated
December 15, 2000. (1) S-1 333-71048 10/05/01 10.15
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Incorporated by Reference

Exhibit
Number Exhibit Description Form File No.

Date of
First Filing

Exhibit
Number

Filed
Herewith

10.26 Loan and Security Agreement by and between
GATX Ventures, Inc. and the Registrant dated
April 13, 2001. S-1 333-71048 10/05/01 10.16

10.27 Amendment #1 to Software License Agreement
by and between Information Resource
Engineering, Inc. (now SafeNet, Inc.) and the
Registrant dated June 22, 2001. S-1 333-71048 10/05/01 10.17

10.28 Amendment #2 to Software License Agreement
by and between SafeNet, Inc. and the Registrant
dated December 26, 2001. (2) 10-K 000-33387 12/30/02 10.28

10.29 International Customer Agreement by and
between IBM Global Services and the Registrant
dated July 25, 2001. S-1 333-71048 10/05/01 10.18

23.01 Consent of Ernst & Young LLP, Independent
Auditors. — — — — X

31.01 Certification of Chief Executive Officer Pursuant
to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of
2002. — — — — X

31.02 Certification of Chief Financial Officer Pursuant
to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of
2002. — — — — X

32.01 Certification of Chief Executive Officer Pursuant
to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of
2002. — — — — X

32.02 Certification of Chief Financial Officer Pursuant
to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of
2002. — — — — X

(1) Management contract or compensatory plan or arrangement.
(2) Confidential treatment has been granted with respect to certain portions of this agreement. Such portions

were omitted from the respective filing and were filed separately with the Securities and Exchange
Commission.
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